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LEASE AGREEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BROOKS

This lease agreement is made and entered by and between Brooks County, Falfurrias, Texas.
Whose address is 100 East Miller Street, Falfurrias, Texas 78355, referred to herein as “Lessor” and the
Community Action Corporation of South Texas, whose address is 204 East 15 St., Alice, Texas, in this lease
called “Lessee” The term of this lease shall commence on January 1, 2019 and shall end on January 1,
2024.

The Lessee desires to lease from the Landlord upen the terms and conditions set out herein:

A. Leased premises: The property leased under the terms hereof is legally described as follows:

1302 S. St. Marys St. Suite A, B, & D, Brooks County Falfurrias, Tx. 78355

B. Rental payments: Lessee shall pay to Lessor, at 1302 S. St. Marys, Falfurrias, Tx. 78355
at a rate of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) per month. The rent shall be paid on the
first day of every month with a ten (10) day grace period and shalf continue thereafter,
throughout the term of {ease or until the termination of said lease.

C. Lessor warrants that the leased premises are in good repairs and fit for the use as
specified, “Community Action Health Center-Brooks” and zoned for such commercial Use.
if is expressively understood and agreed by both parties that the Lessor shall provide the
lease premises with the following:

1. Effective water proofing and weather proiection of the contents of leased premises
by providing a watertight roof, exterior walls, windows and doors. Such provisions
will be assured and maintained by the Lessor.

2. Plumbing facilities which conform to applicable law.

3. Heating and cooling facilities which conform to applicable law and are maintained in
good working order. Costs of major repairs to air conditioning system are to be the
responsibility of the Lessor.

4. Electrical lighting, with wiring and electrical equipment which conform to applicable
laws.

D. Lessor shall pay and fully discharge all real property taxes, special assessments and
governmental charges of every character imposed during the term of the lease.




Lessee is responsible for:
A. Any routine, daily maintenance at the facility.

B. Paying all utility charges for water, electricity, heat, gas and telephone services used in
and about the leased premised during the term of this lease, all such charges are to be
paid by the Lessee directly to the utility companies or municipality furnishing the same.

C. Erecting any signs on any portion of the leased premises including but not limited to the exterior
walls of the premises, subject to applicable statute, ordinances, and zoning restrictions, Lessee
shall remove all sighs at the termination of this lease and shall repair any damage including, but not
limited to, closing any holes caused by such removal.

D. Permitting the Lessor and/ or his agents to enter into and on the premises at all
reasonable times for the purpose of inspection, maintenance, making repairs of alterations to
the premises, or any other purpose necessary to protect the lessor’s interest in the leased
premises or to perform Lessor’s duties under this lease.

E. Not assigning or otherwise transferring this lease or any right or interest in this lease,
without the written consent of the Lessor. '

F. Maintaining extended coverage insurance on the covered premises to cover personal
liability for injuries occurring on said premises.

G. Surrendering the premises in a good state of repair and condition, at the end of the
lease term, allowing for reasonable use and wear, and damage by Acts of God, including
fire and storm. Lessee agrees to remove all signs and symbols placed in the premises
before delivering the premises to the Lessor.

H. At the expiration of the lease, let all permanent improvements remain at the facility.
Free- standing shelving, counters not attached to the building, and all medical
equipment to include all furniture will not be considered as permanent improvements.

The covenants herein contained shall bind all parties and their respective heirs,
executors, administrators, and assigns, and the terms “Lessor” and “Lessee” where used herein, shall be
taken to mean either the singular or the plural, as the context that may require.

This agreement shall be constructed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas,
and all obligations of the parties created by this lease are performable in Brooks County, Texas.

Termination: Subsequent to the initial five (5} year term of this lease, Lessee may terminate this
lease at anytime by giving written notice to Lessor by Certified Mail, with return receipt requested, and
this lease will then terminate the Lessee’s obligation to pay rental. It will terminate ninety (90) days
from the receipt of the notice of termination. Subsequent to the initial five {5) year term of this lease,




Lessee will be provided with new leasing options as agreed upon by Lessor. In the event of termination
of funding to the Lessee (by the funding government entity), Lessee may then terminate the agreement
by providing not less than ninety (90) days prior written notice of its intent to terminate.

This agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement of the parties to the agreement
and supersedes any prior understanding or written or oral agreements between or alteration of

the terms of this agreement shall be binding unless it is in writing, dated subsequent to the date
of this agreement, and duly executed by both parties.

Lessor: Lessee:

Eric Ramos Ann E. Awalt, MPA
Brooks County Judge Executive Director

Llagl 14 1o

Date Date
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Raul Hernandez & Company, P. C.
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holly Rd, Suite 102
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361)980-0428 Fax (361)980-1002

Honorable County Judge and County Commissioners
Brooks County, Texas

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Brooks County, Texas, as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, we considered the Brooks County, Texas' Internal control over financial reporting (internal
controf) as a basis for designing our audiling procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Brooks County,
Texas’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Brooks County,

Texas' internal confrol,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operafion of a control does not allow management or
employses, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements

will not be pravented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses
and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses,

This communication is infended solely for the information and use of management, Members of the
Commissioners Court, and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than these specified parties.

Faad Horander & &ﬂgﬂaﬁ% £l

Corpus Christi, TX
March 12, 2019




Raul Hernandez & Company, P. C.
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holly Rd., Suite 102
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361)980-0428 Fax (361)980-1002

Honorable County Judge and County Commissioners
Brooks County, Texas

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Brooks County, Texas, for the year ended September
30, 2018. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related

to our audit.
Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selectionh and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting palicies used by Brooks County, Texas, are described in Note A to the
financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing
policies was not changed during September 30, 2018. We noted no transactions entered into by
the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the
proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the fihancial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. There were no significant estimates
noted in the financial statements

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstafements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken

as a whole.




Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased fo report
that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are Included in the
management representation letter dated March 12, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with

other accountants.
Other Audif Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the appiication of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior fo retention as the governmental unit's
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Commissioners Court and management of
Brooks County, Texas, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.
Very truly yours,

Kt tornandor & Compang, FC.
March 12, 2019
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Raul Hernandez and Company, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holly Rd., Suite 102
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361)980-0428 Fax (361)980-1002

To the Commissioner's Court
Brooks County, Texas

P.O. Box 517

Falfurrias, Texas 78355

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Brooks County, Texas ("the County™) as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
County's basic financial statemenis as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presemtation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemenis, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevamt to the County's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal
contral. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
wall as evaluating the overall presentation of the financlal statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statementis referred to above present fairly, in all materiai respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Brooks County, Texas as of September 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.




Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accountting Principle

As described in Note A to the financial statements, in 2018, Brooks County, Texas adopted new accounting
guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postempioyment Benefits Other than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect

to this matter.
Other Matters

Required Supplementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis, and budgetary comparisen information and schedule of the County's proportionate
share of the net pension Hability and schedule of County pension contributions, and schedule of the County's
proporiionate share of the net OPER liability and schedule of County OPEB contributions identified as Required
Supplementary tnformation in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financlal statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with audiling standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inguities, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obiained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide

any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpese of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Brooks County, Texas's basic financial statements. The introduciory section and combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
required parts of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
tinancial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial stalemenis themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. [n our opinion, the combining and
individual nenmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic

financial statements as a whole,




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 12, 2019
on our consideration of Brooks County, Texas's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreemenis and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the resulis of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the County's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Brooks County, Texas's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respscifully submitted,

P.C.

Raul Hernandez & Company,

Corpus Christi, TX
March 12, 2019
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) offers readers of the County financial
statements a narrative overview and analysis of the County’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2018. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information furnished in our letter of transmittal, and in the financial
statements and notes to the financial statements (which immediately follow this discussion). The
implementation of the new financial reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 34 (Basic
Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local
Governments) makes the County’s September 30, 2018 Annual Financial Report significantly
different than those of previous years. New sections include this Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, the Government-wide Statement of Net Position, the Government-wide Statement of
Activities, the concept of major fund reporting, and the reporting of infrastructure capital assets
and long term debt liabilities in the governmental activities. These concepts are explained
throughout this discussion and analysis.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the County of Brooks exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $14,297,234 (Net Position). Of this amount, $5,269,256 represents
unrestricted Net Position.

s As of the close of the current fiscal year, the County of Brooks governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $4,493,503. Of this amount, $1,348,262 is available for
spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$1,348,262.

e The County of Brooks’ total debt increased by a net of $429,253.
OVIERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts—management's discussion and analysis (this section),
the basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. The basic financial
statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the County:

« The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-
term and shori-term information about the County’s overall financial status.

¢ The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
government, reporting the County’s operations in more detail than the government-wide
statements.

o The governmental funds statements tell how general government services were financed in
the short term as well as what remains for future spending.




©

BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the
activities the government operates like businesses. The County maintains one type of
proprietary fund, an internal service fund. The Internal service fund is used to report
activities of the County’s self-insurance program. Because these services predominately
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, the Internal Service Fund is
reported with govermmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The Internal Service Fund is presented as a single,
aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.

Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the
County acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources in

question belong,

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of reguired
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial

statements,

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the County’s financial statements, including the
portion of the County government they cover and the types of information they contain. The
remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explams the structure
and contents of each of the statements.

Figure A-1 Major Features of the County’s Government-wide

and Fund Financial Statements

nype of Statements| [Governmental Funds] roprietar_ﬂ [Fiduciary]
Fund§| ][' un dsl
Seope Entire county The activities of the Activities of Instances in
Govertiment (except) county that are not County similar which county
Fiduciary funds) proprietary or to private or agent for
and the county’s fiduciary business; self SOmEone
component units insurance else’s resources
Statement of Balance Sheei Statement of Statement of
Reguired Financial VL L QSO e e veeme e anemaecevnmrevenrrrarssassnsessassssnnnen Net Lazition,....... JiduciaryNet Position
Stalements Statement of Statement of revenites, Statement of Statement of
Activities expenditures & changes rev, exp, & in fiduciary
in fund balances changes in Net Position
Net Position

Accounting basis

and medsurement

focus

LTI ) A e TR R A A B A T e e

Statement of cash flows

Statement of
flows

Accrual accounting Acormal accounting

Accrual accounting Modified accrual
and economic accounting and and economic €CONOMIC FESOUTCes
resources focus current financial focus focus




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

Government-wide Statements

The two government-wide statements report the County’s Net Position and how they have
changed. Net Position—the difference between the County’s assets and liabilities—is one way fo
measure the County’s financial health or position.

e (Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s Net Position are an indicator of whether
its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the overall health of the County, one needs to consider additional nonfinancial
factors such as changes in the County’s tax base

The government-wide financial statéments of the County include the Governmental activities.
Most of the County’s basic services are included here, such as general government, public safety,
highways and streets, sanitation, economic development, culture and recreation, and interest on
long-term debt. Property taxes and grants finance most of these activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County’s most
significant fiumds—not the County as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the County uses
to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.

¢ Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

e The Commissioner’s Court establishes other funds to control and manage money for
particular purposes or to show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants,

The County has the following kinds of funds:

o  Governmental funds—Most of the County’s basic services are included in governmental
funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted
to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a detailed shori-term view that
helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in
the near future to finance the County’s programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide
additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement, or on the
subsequent page, that explain the relationship (or differences) between then.

o Fiduciary funds—The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain funds. It is also
responsible for other assets that—because of a trust arrangement—can be used only for the
trust beneficiaries, The County is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these
funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the County’s fiduciary activities are
reported in a separate statement of fiduciary Net Position and a statement of changes in
fiduciary Net Position. We exclude these activities from the County’s government-wide
financial statements because the County cannot use these assets to finance its operations.




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

ANANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE

Net position. The County's combined net position were $14 297 234 at September 30, 2018. (See

Table A-1),

Current assets:
Cash/Cash equivalenis
Restricted Cash
Taxes recelvable
Infergovermmental Receaivable
Total current assets:

Non-current assets:
Capital Assets
tess; Accumulated
Depreciation
Net Pension Asset
Total non-current assets:

Total Assefs

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Cuffiow Related lo Pension Plan
Deferred Qufflow Related to OPEB
Total Deferred Qutfiows of Rescurces

Current Liahilities
Accounts payable and
other current liabilities
Accrued Interest Payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term Liabilittes
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net OPEB Liability

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of Resources:
Deferred Amounts Related to OPEB
Deferred Amounis Related to Pensions

Total Deferred Infiows of Resources

Net Position;
Invested in capifal assels, netof
relafed debt
Restricted For:
Debf Service
Capital Projects
Unrestricted
Total Net Posifion

Table A1
County's Net Position

Governmental Increase

Activitles {Decrease}

018 20 2018-2017
$ 4680819 $ 2,805,128 $ 1,875,691
128,421 147,040 {17,619)
1,345,935 1,182,981 162,954
$ B,/156,175 § 4135149 $ 2021028
20,452 465 19,789,176 863,289
(9,598,351} (8,968,261} (630,090)
2,051,879 1,014,459 1,037,420
12,905,893 11,835,374 33,199
$ 19,062,168 § 15,970,523 $ 2,054,225
158,347 1,394,073 (1,234,7286)
16,574 - 16,574
175,921 1,384,073 (1,218,152}
187,307 166,724 20,583
15452 24,285 (8,813)
202,758 190,989 11,770
828,798 583,362 245 436
3,093,530 2,808,712 183,818
307,025 - 307,025
$ 4229353 $ 3,684,083 $ 736,279
8,908 - 8,808
499,835 497 545 2,290
508,743 497 545 11,198
6,531,786 7,327,840 (396,054)
552327 521572 30,755
1,543,865 1,696,007 {152,142)
5,269,256 3,637,569 1,631,687
$ 14297234 $ 13,182,988 $ 1,114,246
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

The increase of $630,090 in accumulated depreciation was due to depreciation expense. $552,327
of the County’s restricted Net Position represents funds available for the debt service, while
$1,543,865 represents funds for capital project funds. These funds when spent are restricted for
repayment of debt and capital asset acquisitions respectively, Unrestricted net asset represents
resources available to fund the programs of the County for the following year. The balance for
unrestricted net position at September 30, 2018 was $5,269,256, which is an increase of
$1,631,687 from the prior year.

Revenues. The County’s total revenues were $21,022,931. A significant portion, $12,451,419 of
the County’s revenue comes from operating grants & contributions. $5,153,708 comes from
property taxes and $3,105,384 relates to charges for services. (See Figure A-2 and Table A-2).

Governmental Activities

¢ Sales taxes had revenue of $274,390 while miscellaneous revenues had revenues of $12,170.

Figure A-2
Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
{in doHars)
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

Table A-2
Brooks County's Changes in Net Position - Governmental Activities
Governmental Increase
Actlvities (Decrease)
2018 2017 2018-2017
Revenues:

Program:

Charges for senices $ 3,105,384 $ 2,594,591 510,793

Operating Grants and

Contributions 12,451,419 11,187,489 1,263,930
General:

Property Taxes 5,153,708 4,843,480 310,228

Sales Taxes 274,380 300,255 (25,865)

Investment Income 25,880 15,501 10,359

Miscellaneous 12,170 31,676 {19,4086)

Total Revenues $ 21,022,931 $ 18,972,892 2,050,039
Cost of Services:

General Gowernment 2,774,254 2,562,859 211,395

Judicial 1,055,039 886,978 168,061

Public Safety 13,719,891 12,668,781 1,053,110

Public Transportation 1,198,765 1,558,871 (360, 108)

Health and Welfare 426,554 380,968 45,586

Culture and Recreation 37,306 38,258 (952)

Conservation 80,892 88,714 {7,822}

Economic Development and

Assistance 219,317 32,480 186,837

Interest on Long-term Debt 173,441 187,417 (13,976)
Total Cost of Services $ 19,685,458 $ 18,403,326 1,282,133
Change in net position 1,337,472 569,566 1,907,038
Net position - beginning 13,182,988 12,613,422 569,566
Reclassification of Beginning Net Position (223,228) - {223,226)
Net position-beginning-restated 12,959,762 12,613,422 346,340
Net position - ending $ 14,297,234 $ 13,182,988 $ 1,114,246

Table A-2 and Figure A-3 present the cost of each of the County's largest functions.

+ The cost of all gowernmental activities this year was $19,685,459,
» However, the amount that our taxpayers paid for these activities through property taxes

was approximately $5,153,708.
«  $13,719,891 of these costs is public safety.

10




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

Figure A-3

Cost of Services - Governmental Activities

(in dollars)
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

As noted eatlier, the County uses find accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. Fund accounting and budget controls has been the framework

of the County’s strong fiscal management and accountability.

Governmental funds. The general government functions are reported in the General, Special
Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Project Funds. The focus of the County 's governmental funds
is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the County’s annual financing and budgeting requirements.
In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $4,593,503, which is an increase of $1,839,307 from the prior period. The
unassigned fund balance, used as a management and budgetary tool, is available for spending at
the County’s discretion.

The General fund is the chief operating {fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $1,348,262. As a measure of the general fund’s
liquidity, we compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund

expenditures.

The Debt Service Fund (county-wide) has a total fund balance of $53,514, which is an increase of
$11,408.

11




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

FINANCTAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

Revenues

Revenues from governmental fund types totaled $20,859,979. The most significant portion in
governmental fund revenue sources was derived from intergovernmental revenues, which totaled
$12,460,711. Taxes consisted of general property taxes, and general sales & use taxes, which

totaled $5,265,146.

The County’s primary source of revenue consists of intergovernmental revenues, which comprise
60% of the County’s total revenues. In addition, taxes and fines & forfeitures comprise 26% and
10% of total revenues, respectively. The county departments that charge for services include park
& recreational, fees of office from justice of the peace precinets, and constables, which are all an
important part of the County’s revenues. They are an integral part of the County’s ability to
provide the services to which citizens have become accustomed, (See Figure A-4 and Table A-3).

Figuxe A-4
Governmental Funds - Revenues by Source
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

Table A-3
Governmental Funds — Revenues by Source
Increase
FY 2018 FY 2017 {Decrease)

Taxes $ 5265146 $ 5,064,320 $ 200,817
License and Permits 399,182 373,275 25,807
Intergovernmental 12,460,711 11,198,520 1,262,121
Charges for Services 207,665 139,893 67,772
Fines & Forfeitures 2,016,296 1,838,181 178,115
Fees of Office 348,600 177,967 171,633
Investment Earnings 25,860 15,501 10,359
Misc. Revenues 124,289 51,032 73,257
Contributions & Danations 11,230 34,718 {23,488)

Total Revenues $ 20859979 $ 18,893,486 $ 1,080,981

Expenditures
Compared to the prior year, the County had an overall increase of $1,336,412 in expenditures, due
to increases in monies spent for the General Fund and GEO Group Fund. Debt service principal

expenditures had an increase of $104,301.

The County’s primary expenditures were for public safety, general government, public
transportation, and economic development & assistance. Public Safety now accounts for 70% of
total expenditures, General government expenditures accounted for 12% of total expenditures.

(See Figure A-5 and Table A-4)

Figure A-5

Governmental Funds - Expenditures by Function
{in dollars)
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

Table A-4
Governmental Funds — Expenditures by Function
Increase
FY 2018 FY 2017 {Decrease}
General Government $ 2,204 525 $ 2,027,808 $ 266,719
Judicial 1,055,039 886,978 168,061
Public Safety 13,981,123 12,617,919 1,363,204
Public Transportation 1,239,526 1,773,812 (534,286)
Health and Weifare 426,554 380,568 45 586
Culture and Recreation 37,306 38,258 (952)
Conservation 80,892 88,714 (7.822)
Economic Development and
Assistance 219,317 268,087 (48,770)
Debt Service:
Principal 673,837 569,536 104,301
interest and Fiscal Charges 182,253 201,882 {19,629)
Total Expenditures $ 20,190,372 % 18,853,960 $ 1,336,412
Other financing sources from the County came from:
Table A-5
Other Financing Resources
increase
FY 2018 FY 2017 {Decrease)
Operating Transfers In $ 835682 3 476,644 $ 359,018
Operating Transfers Out (835,662) {476,644) (359,018)
Loan Proceeds 1,103,091 - 1,103,091
$1,103091 % - $ 1,103,091

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The final budget was adopted with total General Fund revenues of $5,180,307 and
expenditures of $5,518,370, which both include transfers.

The following are significant variations between the final budget and actual amount.

*  Actual revenues (including transfers) were higher than budgeted figures by $536,367. Fines
& Forfeitures, Intergovernmental, Fees of Office, and Miscellaneous revenues were above

budget expectations.

* Actual expenditures (including transfers) were $314,744 higher than final budget amounts,
which is attributed an overall increase in spending.
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

B L T N R LR

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets8
At the end of 2018, the County had invested $20,452,465 in a broad range of capital assets,
including land, construction in progress, road network, buildings & improvements, vehicles, and

equipment. (See Table A-6.)

The capital assets of the County are those assets (land, construction in progress, road network,
buildings & improvements, vehicles, and equipment), which are used in the performance of the
County’s functions including infrastructure assets. At September 30, 2018 net capital assets of the
governmental activities totaled $10,854,114. Depreciation on capital assets is recognized in the
Government-wide financial statements. Annual depreciation for road network, buildings &
improvements, vehicles, and equipment totaled $9,598,351.

Table A-6
County’s Capital Assets
Governmental Increase
Activities {Decrease)
2018 2017 2018-2017
Land $ 238,742 $ 238,742 $ -
Construction in Progress - 1,980,786 (1,980,786)
Road Network 3,670,883 3,670,863 -
Buifdings and Improvements 11,175,965 9,195,179 1,980,786
Vehicles 2,288,367 1,777,257 511,110
Equipment 3,080,528 2,928,350 152,178
Total at historical cost 20,452 465 19,789,177 663,288
Total Accumiliated Depreciation (9,598,351) (8,968,261) (630,090)
Net Capital Assets $10,854,114 $10,820,916 $ 33,198
Long Term Debt

At year-end the County had $3,922,327 in bonds and capital leases as shown in Table A-7. The
County’s total debt had a net increase of $429,253 compared to 2017. More detailed information
about the County’s debt is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Table A-7
Long Term Debt
Governmental
Activities
2018 2017
Cettificates of Obligation § 2,755,000 § 3,245,000
Capital Leases 1,167,327 248,074

Total governmental activities $ 3,022,327 § 3493,074
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

Appraised value used for the 2018-2019 budget preparation increased from the prior year.
The County’s tax rate stayed the same as compared to 2017-2018 budget. The new tax rate

is still .940505.

(General operating fund spending in the 2018-2019 budget is expected to have a substantial
increase as compared to 2017-2018. The 2017-2018 budget for expenses was 5,819,306.96
in comparison to the 2018-2019 budget year of 6,263,679.37. This is due to the General
FFund integrating the Commissioner’s into the General Fund instead of the Road and Bridge
Fund. This integration increased the General Fund by $186,000.00. The County increased
their confribution in retirement by 50% which increased the expenditures by an estimated
$53,000.00. The county also budgeted 106,134.97 for the payment of a New Fleet of
Sheriff Vehicles, The Jail department received an increase in pay for salaries for the
department in the amount of approximately $94,000.00.

The county chose not to offer the incentive pay again due to financial constraints.

The County chose to continue with a fully funded health insurance plan to fray additional
expenditures.

The County Retirement plan changed from last year, The employee contribution rate
increased from 4% to 5% and the employee match from 150% matching to 200% matching.

Overall Revenues were increased significantly from 5,819,306.96 to 6,263,679.37
respectively due to an increase of taxable values and higher fines/fees collections.

These items were taken into account when adopting the general fund budget from 2018-
2019,

CONTACTING THE COUNTY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact the County Auditor’s Department at 408 West Travis St., Falfurrias,

Texas 78355,

16




Basic Financial Statements




EXHIBIT A-1

BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalenis $ 4,680,819
Restricted Cash 126,421
Taxes Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles): 1,345,935
Capital Assets ( net of accumulated depreciation):
Land 236,742
Buifdings and Sysfem 4,999,961
Machinery and Equipment 3,293,664
infrastructure 2,323,747
Net Pension Asset 2,051,879
Total Assets 19,062,168
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflow Related to Pension Plan 159,347
Defetred Qutflow Related lo OPEB 16,574
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 175,921
LIABILITIES:
Accounis Payable and Other Gurrent Liabilities 187,307
Accrued Initerest Payabie 15,452
Noncurrent Liabilities-
Due within one year 828,798
Due in more than one yeat 3,093,530
Net QFPEB Liability 307,025
Total Liabilities 4,432,112
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Resource Inflows Related to OPEB 8,908
Deferred Resource Inflows Related to Pensions 498,835
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 508,743
NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,931,786
Restricted For:
Pebt Service 552,327
Capital Projects 1,643,865
Unrestricted 5,268,256
Total Net Position $ 14,297,234

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A-2

BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Qperating
Charges for Grants and Governmental
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activiftes
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 2,774,254 $  2M7,793 $ 5934 &% (750,527)
Judicial 1,055,039 317,793 - (737,2486)
Public Safety 13,719,891 308,118 12,210,763 (1,201,020)
Public Transportation 1,198,765 461,680 227,436 {509,849}
Health and Welfare 428,554 - 7,296 {419,258}
Culture and Recreation 37,306 - - (37,306)
Conservation 80,892 - - (80,892)
Economic Development and Assistance 219,317 - -~ (219,317)
Interest on Long-term Debi 173,441 - - (173,441}
Total Governmental Activities 19,685,459 3,105,384 12,451,412 {4,128,656)
Total Primary Government 3 19,685,459 $ 3,105,384 $ 12451419 (4,128,658)
General Revenues:
Froperly Taxes 5,163,708
Sales Taxes 274,390
Investment Income 25,860
Miscellaneous Revenues 12,170
Total General Revenues 5,466,128
Change in Net Position 1,337,472
Net Position - Beginning 13,182,588
Reclassification of Beginning Net Position (223,228)
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated 12,958,762
MNet Position - Ending % 14,297,234

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Taxes Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles).
Due from Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounis Payable
Due to Other Flnds
Total Liabilities

DEFFERED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue Properly Taxes
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balances:
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction
Retirement for Long-Term Debt
Committed Fund Balance
Constuction
Unassigned Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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General
Fund

$ 1,413,471

1,149,232
$ 2,562,703

$ 65,210

65,210

1,149,231
1,149,231

1,348,262
1,348,262

$ 2,562,703

Road & Bridge
Fund

$ 792,524

196,703

$ 980,227

$ 14,813

14,813

196,704
186,704

777,710

777,710

$%




GEO
Group
Fund

$ 908,550

$ 908,550

$ -
908,550
908,550

$ 908,550

Other
Governmental
Funds

$ 1,466,864
129,421

7,387

3 1,603,622

$ 37,304
7,337
44,641

1,037,147
53,5614

468,320

1,558,981

$ 1,608,622
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Total
Governmental
Funds

$ 4,581,409
128,421

1,345,935

7,337

$ 6,064,102

$ 117,327
7,337
124,664

1,345,835
1,345,935

2,723,407
53,514

468,320

1,348,262
4,583,503

$ 6,064,102




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
RECONCGILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet

Amounts reporied for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital asseis used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds.

Propenty taxes receivable unavaiable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds.

The assets and liabilities of intemnal service funds are included in governmental activities in the SNP.
Payables for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.
Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are not reporied in the funds.
Payabies for notes which are not due in the curent period are not reported in the funds.

Recognition of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension lfability is not repotted in the funds.

Deferred Resource Inflows related o the pension plan are not reported in the funds.

Deferred Resource Outflows related to the pension pltan are not reporied in the funds.

Recogrnition of the County's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability is not reported in the funds.
Deferred Resource Inflows related to the OPEB plan are not reporied in the funds.

Deferred Resource Ouiflows related to the OPEB plan are not reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities - Statement of Net Positfon

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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3 4,593,603

10,854,114
1,345,935
29,431
(2,819,238)
(15,452)
(1,103,001)
2,051,879
(499,835)
159,347 :
(307,025)
(8,208)
16,574

- § 14,297,234
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVEARNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

General Road & Bridge
Fund Fund
Revenue:
Taxes:
General Properly Taxes $ 3,278,491 $ 1,120,495
General Sales and Use Taxes - -
License and Permits 2,954 249,184
Intergavernmental 185,894 -
Charges for Services 48,222 15,758
Fines and Forfaitures 1,837,106 -
Fees of Office 236,766 -
Investment Earnings 15,674 4,325
Miscellansous Revenues 111,467 3,353
Coniributions & Donations - .
Total revenues 5,716,674 1,393,115
Expenditures:
Current:
General Governmeni 2,136,169 -
Judicial 855,869 -
Fublic Safety 2,379,214 -
Public Transportation 55,463 1,119,299
Health and Welfare 165,043 -
Culture and Recreation 36,294 --
Conservation 80,892 -
Economic Development and Assistance - -
Debt Service:
Principal 106,633 44,798
Interest and Fiscal Charges 17,637 4,638
Total Expenditures 5,833,114 1,168,735

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures (116,440) 224,380
Cther Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers In 333,408 --
Transfers Oul (453,890) =
Capital Leases 482,617 -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 362,135 -

Net Change in Fund Balances 245,695 224.380
Fund Balances - Beginning 1,102,567 553,330
Prior Period Adjustment - -

Fund Balances - Ending $ 1,348,262 $ 777,710

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A-5

GEO Other Total
Group Governmential Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
3 -- $ 591,770 3 4,990,756
- 274,390 274,390
- 147,044 399,182
11,397,052 877,665 12,460,711
- 143,685 207,665
- 179,190 2,016,296
-~ 112,834 349,600
558 5,303 25,860
- 9,469 124,289
- 11,230 11,230
11,397,610 2,352,580 20,859,979
- 158,356 2,204,525
- 198,170 1,055,039
10,155,669 1,446,240 13,981,123
- 64,764 1,239,526
- 261,511 426,554 |
- 1,012 37,306 |
- - 80,892
- 219,317 219,317 4}
1
- 522,608 673,837
-- 159,978 182,253 |
10,155,669 3,032,854 20,190,372
1,241,941 {680,274) 669,607
- 502,254 835,662
{333,406) (48,366) (835,662)
- 620,474 1,103,091
{333,4086) 1,074,362 1,103,091
908,535 394,088 1,772,698
15 1,098,282 2,754,194
- ' 66,611 66,611
E 808,550 $ 1,558,981 $ 4,593,503
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EXHIBIT A-6

BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 5 1,772,698

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
("SOA") are different because:

Capital outlays are not reported as expenses in the SOA. 663,288
The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. (630,090)
Certtain propery tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts thig year. 162,952
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 480,000
Repayment of capital laase principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expanse in the SOA. 183,836
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest from beginning of period to end of period. 8,813
The net revenue {expense) of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. {1,816)
Praceeds of leases do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current resources in the funds. {1,103,091)
Pension expense relating to GASB 68 is recorded in the SOA but not in the funds. (209,118)
Change in net position of governmental activities - Statement of Activities $ 1,337,472

The accompanying notes are an Integral pari of this statement,
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS:

Current Assets:

Cash with Fiscal Agent
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments-
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Total Cuirent Liabilities

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assels-
Totai Liabilities

NET POSITION:
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor
Internal Service
Fund

Insurance
Fund

$ 99411

99,411

$ 89,411

$ 69,980
69,980

69,980

$ 29,431
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services:
Premiums and reimbtirsemenis
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Insurance premiums and Claims
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Total Non-operating Revenues {Expenses}
Incomne before Transfers

Change in Net Assels

Total Net Assets - Beginning
Total Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor
Internal Service
Fund
Insurance
Fund

$ 868,127
868,127

869,243
869,843
{(1,816)

(1,816)

{1,816}

31,247

$¢
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EXHIBIT A-9
BROOKS COUNTY
STATEMENT OF GASH FLOWS

Internal Service Fund
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Internal
Service
Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Employee Insurance $ $868,127
and Medical Expense
Cash Paid to Employees Insurance ($799,863)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Opetating Activities $68,164
Cash Flows from Non-capifal Financing Activities:
Operating Transfers From (To) Primary Government o
Operating Transfers From (To) Oiher Funds -
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Non-capital Financing Activities -
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from fssuance of Long-term Debt -
Principal and Interest Paid -~
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Capital & Related Financing Activities -
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest and Dividends on Investmenis -
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities -- |
Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $68,164 ‘
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year $31,247
Cash and Cash Equlvalents at End of Year $ $99,411

Recongiliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ {$1,816)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operafing Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activitles
Depreciation -
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable $69,980
Increase {Decrease) in Due from other funds -
Increase (Decrease) in Due to other funds --
increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities %

]

1
[=2]
e
b
Lo}
P

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivaients
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Due to Other Govemnments and Agencies
Total Liabiiities

NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Agency
Funds
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

A.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The combined financial statements of Brooks Counfy, Texas (the "County") have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles applicable o governmental units which are generally accepted in the Uniled States of
America. The Govermmenta!l Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"} is the accepted siandard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and finangial reporting principles.

1.

Reporting Entity

The County's basic financial statemenis include the accounts of all its eperations. The County evaluated
whether any other entity should be Included in these financial statements. The criteria for including
organizations as component units within the County's reporting enfity, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14,

“The Financial Reporting Entity,” include whether:

- the arganization is legaily separate (can sue and be sued in its name)}

- the County holds the corporate powers of the organization

- the County appoints a voting majority of the organization's board

- the County is able to impose its will oh the otganization

- the organization has the potentfal to impose a financial benefitburden on the County

- there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the County

- the exclusion of the organization would result in misleading or incomplete financial statemenis

The County also evaluated each legally separate, tax-exempt organization whose resources are used principally
to provide support to the County to determine if its omission from the reporting entity would resuit in financial
statements which are misleading or incomplete. GASB Statement No. 14 requires inclusion of such an
organization as a component unit when: 1) The economic resources received or held by the organization are
antirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the County, ils component uhits or ifs constituents; and 2) The
County or its component units is enfitled fo, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic
resources received or held by the crganization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant to the County.

Based on these criteria, the County has no compenent units. Additionally, the County is not a component unit of
any other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement.

Basis of Prasentation, Basis of Accounting

a. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statemenis: The statement of net position and the statement of activities include the
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations been made to
minimize the double-counting of internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchangs transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison bsiween direct expenses and program revenues for
activities. Direct expenses are those thal are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The County does not aliocate indirect expenses
in the statement of activities. Program revenues include {a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients
of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a parficular program. Revenuses that are not classiffed as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the County's funds,
with separate sialements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial major
govermnmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and aggregated

and reporied as nonmajor funds.
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, resull from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperafing revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings,
result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This Is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
County except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Road and Bridge. The Road and Bridge Fund accounis for are constitional funds established to account
for current funds used for the pumpose of constructing and maintaning road and bridges. The principle
source of revenue for this fund s ad valorem taxes, auto registration and intergovernmental revenues.
GEC Group FUND. The LSC fund is used to account for federal monies received for the housing of
federal inmates in the Counly jail; the funds are use for the purpose operating:costs incurred to operate

the jail facilities.
In addition, the County reporis the foliowing fund types:

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for revenues and expenses related to services provided
to parties inside the County. These funds faciltate distribution of support cosis to the users of support
services on a cosk-reimbursement basis. Because the principal users of the internal services are the
County's governmental activities, this fund type is included in the "Governmental Activities" column of the

government-wide financial statements.

Agency Funds: These funds are used to report student activity funds and other resources held in a purely custedial
capacily (assets equal liabilities). Agency funds typically invoive only the receipt, temporary investment, and
remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements. However, because their assets are held in
a trustee or agenl capacity and are therefore not available to support County programs, these funds are not
included in the government-wide statements.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: These financlal statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund
financial staiements are reportied using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded af the fime liabilitfes are incurred, regardless of when the related cash
flows lake place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives} value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, Include property faxes, grants, entilements, and
donafions. On an accrual basis, revenue from properly taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all efigibility requirements have been satisfied.
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Governmental Fund Financial Statemenis: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modifled accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. The County considers all revenues reporied in the
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end.
Revenues from local sources conslst primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues
received from the State are recognized under the susceptble-fo-accrual concept.  Miscellaneous
revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until
actually recelved. Investment eamings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and
available. Expenditures are recorded when the relaied fund lablity is incurred, except for prineipal and
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are
recognized as expendilures to the extent they have matured. General capltal asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures In governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions
under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

When the County incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources may
be used, i is the County's policy o use restricied resources first, then unrestricled resources.

Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Propristary Fund Accounting,” all propristary funds will continue to
follow Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") standards issued on or before November 30, 1989.
However, from that date forward, propriefary funds will have the option of either 1) choosing not to apply
future FASB standards (including amendments of earlier pronouncements), ot 2) continuing to follow new
FASB pronouncements unless they conflict with GASB guidance. The County has chosen

3. Financial Statement Amounts

a.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be cash equivalents if they
have a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Property Taxes

Propetly taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for alt real
and business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinguent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in
which Imposed. On January 1 of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of
revenues are considered available (1) when they become due or past due and receivable within the
current period and {2) when they are expected to be collected during a 60-day period after the close of
the fiscal year.

Allowances for uncoillectible tax recelvables within the General and Debt Service Funds are based upon
historical experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal properly iaxes are periodically

reviewed and wiitten off, but the Gounty is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without speciiic
statutory authority from the Texas Legislature.

inveniories and Prepaid ltems

inveniories on the balance sheet are siated at weighted average cost. Inventory items are recorded as
expenditures when they are consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items.
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

d. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capitat assets are reported at cost or estimated historica! cost. Donated fixed assets
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the daie of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assetls' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization

threshold of $5,000 is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure 30
Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Vehicles 2-15
Office Equipment 3-156
Computer Equipment 3-18

e. Receivable and Payable Balances

The County believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided in the
financial statements to avold the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no
disclosure is provided which disaggregates those balances.

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end.

f. Pension Plan

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Nel Position of the
TCDRS and additions to/deductions from TCDRS' Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by TCDRS. For this purpese, plan contributions are recognized in the
period that compensation is reported for the employee, which Is when contributions are legally due.

Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms
Investments are reported at fair value.

g Interfund Activity

Interfund activity resulis from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans
are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed fo be at market or near market rales, are treated as revenues
and expendiiures or expenses. Reimbursements cccur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. Al other interfund
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In and Transfers Out are nefted and presenied as a single
"Trangferg" line on the government-wide statement of acivities. Similarly, interfund receivables and
payables are nefted and presented as a single “Internal Balances" fine of the government-wide

statement of net assets.

h. Use of Estimaies

The preparafion of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management's estimates.
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

i, Cther Postemployment Benefits (CPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred ouiflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the County's
plan (OPEB Plan} and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan's fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investmenis are reported at fair value.

Generally accepted acounting principles require that the reported results must pertain 1o liability and asset
information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date December 31, 2017
Measurement Date December 31, 2017
Employer's FYE September 30, 2018

3. Budgetary Data

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data refiected in the basic financial
statements:

The commissioners court may levy taxes only in accordance with the budget. After final approval of the
budget, the commissioners court may spend county funds only in strict compliance witht the budget, except in
any emergency. The commissioners court may authorize an emertgency expenditure as an amendment to the
original budge only in case of grave public necessity to meet an unusual and unforeseen condition that could
ot have been included in the orginal budget through the use of reasonable diligent thought and attention. If
the court amends the original budget to meet an emergency, the court must file a copy of its order amending
the budget witht the county clerk and the county clerk shall attach the copy io the orginal budget. Only the
commissioner's court may amend the budget and shift funds from one budget account to another,

The original budget is adopied by commissioners court and filed with the county ¢lerk. Amendments are made
during the year and approved by commissioners court, The budget should not be exceeded in any
expenditures category under state law. The budgst was amended to reflect as close as possible revenues and
expenditures for the twelve- month perfod. Cerlain categories exeeded the budget estimates. These variances
were due to the flucuations in revenues and expenditures as opposed fo the prorated budget estimates.

The county judge Is by statute, the budget officer of the county. He usually requests and relies on the
assistance of the county auditor to prepare the annual budget. After being furnished budget guidelines by
commissioners court, the county judge, with the help of the county auditor, prepares an estimate of revenues
and a compilation of requested deparimental expenditures and submits this data o commisstoners court.

The commissioners court invites various department heads to appear for a hearing concerning the
department's budget request. Before determining the final budget, commissioners court may increase or
decrease the amounts requested by the various departments. Amounts finally budgeted may not exceed the
estimate of revenues and available resources. Also, amendments can be made within the above guidelines.

When the budget had been adopted by commissioners' court, the county auditor Is responsible for monitoring
the expenditures of the various depariments of the county to prevent expenditures from exceeding budgeted
appropriations and for keeping the members of the commissiohers court advised of the condition of the various

funds and accounts. Appropriations lapse at year-end.

Budgets for the general fund and budgeted special revenue, debt service and budgeted capital projects funds
are adopted in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

The following funds had adopted budgets for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015:

General Fund

Road and Bridge Fund
Health Use Sales Tax Fund
Debt Service Fund
LGCSA.C.E. Fund

Capital Improvements Fund
Lateral Road Fund

The level of control is the fund. By state law expenditures can exceed appropriations as long as the amounts
do not exceed the available revenues and cash balances. Since revenues and expenditures are carefully
monitored, itis felt that with GAAP basis the couniy will be in compliance with stafe law.

The legal level of budgetary controf { the level on which expenditures may not exceed appropriations} is oh an
object clags basfs. If total expenditures exceed appropriations and are in excess of revenues and available cash
then transfers of appropriated amounts must be made and approval must be obtained from the commissicners
court, Management may not amend the budget. All amendments must be made by and approved by the
commissioners' eourt. ’

Encumbrance Accounting
Encumbrances for goods or purchased services are documented by purchase arders or contracts. Under Texas law,
appropriations lapse at September 30, and encumbrances outstanding at that time are to be either canceled or

approptiately provided for in the subsequent year's budget.

The County had no ouistanding end-of-year encumbrances.

Compliance and Accouniability

1.

Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

in accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures,” violations of
finance- related legal and contractual provisions, if amy, are reported below, along with actions faken to
address such violations:

Violation None repctted Action Taken
Not applicable

Deficit Fund Bafance or Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds

The County did not have any funds with defict fund balances or fund net assets at September 30, 2018.

Deposits and Investments

The GCounty's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract. The
depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the Couniy's agent bank approved pledged secuwitles in an
amount sufficient to protect Gounty funds on a day-to-day basis during the perfod of the contract. The pledge of
approved securities is waived only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation {"FDIC") insurance.
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Cash Deposits:

Al September 30, 2018, the carrying amouni of the Counly's deposits (cash, cenificates of deposit, and
interest-bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $5,795,256 and the bank balance was
$5,225,838. The County's cash deposits at September 30, 2018 and during the year ended September 30, 2018,
were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the County's agent bank in the County's

name.

lnvesiments:

The Public Funds Invesiment Act ("Act") requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this
area conducied as a par of the audit of the general purpose financial statements disclosed that in the areas of
investment practices, management reporis and eslablishment of appropriate poficies, the County adhered to the
requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the Counly were In accordance with focal policies.

Investment Accounting Policy

The County's gensral policy is to report money market investments and shor-term participating interest-earning
investment contracts at amortized cost and fo report nonparticipating inferest-earning invesiment contracts using a
cost-based measure. However, if the falr value of an investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the
credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other invesimenis are reported at fair
value unless a legal contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term “short-term" refers to investments
which have a remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term “nonpatticipating” means that the
investment's value does not vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples
of nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts. |

The County's investments at September 30, 2018 are shown below.

Investment or Investment Type Maturity
N/A N/A
Total invesiments

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the County was exposed to the following specific
investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The ratings of
securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the
County was not significantly exposed to credit risk.

b.  Gustodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodiaf credit risk if they are not covered by depository Insurance and the deposits are
uncollateralized, collateralized with segurities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the County's hame.

Investment securities are exposed fo custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of
the government, and are held by either the counterparly or the counterpaily’s frust departiment or agent but not in the

County's name.

Al year end, the District waa nof exposed to custodial credit risk.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

¢c. Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss atiributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer. At year end, the
County was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the
GCounty was not exposed to interest rate risk.

e,  Foreign Gurrancy Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the County was
not exposed to foreign currency risk.

D. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2018, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances increases Decreases Balances
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 236,742 & - $ - & 238,742
Construction in progress 1,980,786 -- 1,980,786 -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2.217,628 -- 1,980,786 236,742
Capital assets being depreciated:
Road Network 3,670,863 - - 3,670,863
Buildings and improvements 9,185,179 1,880,786 - 11,175,965
Equipment 2,928,350 162,178 - 3,080,528
Vehicles 1,777,257 511,110 - 2,288,367
Fotal capital assets being depreciated 17,671,649 2,644,074 - 20,215,723
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Road Network (1,265,890) (81,226) - (1,347,116)
Buildings and improvements (3,972,723) (222,495} - (4,195,218)
Equipment (2,341,259) (167,948) -- (2,509,207)
Vehicles {1,388,389) {158,421) - (1,546,810)
Total accumulated depreciation (8,968,261) (630,080) - (9,598,351)
Total capital assets heing depreciated, net 8,603,388 2,013,984 - 10,617,372
Govemmental activities capitaf assets, net $ 10,820,916 $ 2,013,984 § 1,980,786 § 10,854,114
Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:
General Government $ 630,090

$ 630,090
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E. Interfund Balances and Activity

1. Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from ofiter funds at September 30, 2018, consisted of the following:

Due To Fund Cue From Fund Amount Purpose

Sheriff Selzure Fund Homeland Security Fund 6,337 Shori-term loans

Election Service Fund Chapter 19 Fund 1,000 Shori-term loans
Total $ 7,337

All amounts due are scheduled o be ropaid within one year.

1.  Transfers To and From Other Funds
Transfers to and from other funds at September 30, 2018, consisted of the following:

Transfers From Transfers To Amount Reason

General fund Juvenile Probation 118,000 Supplement other funds sources
General fund Airport Fund 32,000 Supplement other funds sources
General fund Alien Death Processing 3,400 Supplement other funds sources
General fund Consolidation fund 29,490 Supplement other funds sources
General fund Landfill 270,000 Supplement other funds sources
Bond Series 2013 Interest and Sinking Fund 24,000 Supplement other funds sources
GEOC Group General fund 333,406 Supplement ofher funds sources
Interest and Sinking fund Bond Series 2071 7,000 Supplement other funds sources
Constable's Abandoned Vehicle Constable Seizure fund 176  Supplement other funds sources
TJPC-E Vertex Fund Juvenile Probation 1,337  Supplement other funds sources

Total $ 835,662

F.  Short-Term Debt Astivity

The County did not have any short-term debt outstanding for year ended September 30, 2018.

G. - ligafi

1. Long-Term Obligation Aclivity

The County accounts for long-term debis for maintenance purposes through the General Fund. The proceeds from
loans are shown in the financial statements as Other Resources.

In 2004, the County issued Certificates of Obligation, Series 2004 in the amount of $4,000,000 due in annual
installments of 115,000 to $295,000 through March 1, 2024, interest range of 3.60% to 5.00% due semi-annuaily on
March 1, and September 1, of each year. The proceeds of the above debt were received during September 2004
and were for the building improvements to the county courthouse, county airport, to construct and make
improvements to various streets, roads and bridges within the couniy and county drainage facilities.

37




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

The following is the certificates of obligation outstanding at September 30, 2018

Description

Certificates of
Obligation

Certificates of
Obligation

Certificales of
Obligation

Interest Date of

Hates (%) Issuance

3.60% - August 9, 2004
5.00%

4.59% Septernber 16,

2011

5.00% - September 15,

8.50% 2013

Date of
Maturity

March 1, 2024

September 30,
2031

March 1, 2020

Bonds
Quistanding

$1,580,000

$820,000

$355,000

In 2011, the County issued Certificates of Obligation, Series 2011 in the amount of $1,100,000 due in annual
installments of $35,000 to $80,000 through March 1, 2031. interest rate of 4.59% due semi-annually on March 1,
and September 1, of each year. The proceeds of the above debt were received during September 2011 and were

for Courthouse renovations.

In 2013, the Gounty issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2013 in the amount of $1,200,000
due in annual installments of $50,000 to $240,000 through March 1, 2020. Interest rate of 5.00% to 8.50% due semi-
annually on March 1 and September 1, of each year. The procees of the above debt were o recieved and used to pay

the Seitlement Agreement with the Depariment of Justice.

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the
year ended September 30, 2018, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Bue Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental aclivities:
Certificates of Obligation $ 3,245,000 § - % 480,000 $ 2,755,000 525,000
Capital leases 248,074 1,103,090 183,837 1,187,327 303,798
Total governmental activities § 3,483,074 $ 1,103,090 § 673,837 $ 3922327 ¢ 828,798

Debt Service Requirements
Debt seivice requirements on fong-term debt at September 30, 2018, are as follows: -

Goveramental Activities

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 $ 525,000 § 126,084 § 651,084
2020 410,000 98,019 508,019
2021 305,000 78,948 383,048
2022 325,000 63,413 388,413
2023 335,000 47,558 382,658
2024-2028 855,000 116,019 871,019
Totals % 2,755,000 § 530,041 § 3,285,041
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3. Capital Leases

The County has entered into three lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of a phone system,
hardware, saftware, and three police vehicles. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting
purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present valite of their future minimum lease payments as of
the inception date.

1) On April 21, 2015, the County entered into a five year lease agreement, secured with 8 vehicles with
Government Capital Corporation, with a maturity of November 15, 2019. Payments are due in annual
installements of $49,496.75, including interest of 3.40%.

2) On October 11, 2017, the County entered info a five year lease agreement, secured with 2 vehicles with
Government Capital Corporation, with a maturity of October 11, 2022. Payments are due in annual installments of
$106,134.97, including interest of 3.25%.

3) On July 13, 2015, the Couniy entered into a four year lease agreement, securad with a constable vehicle
with Government Capital Corporation, with a maturity of May 13, 2019, payments are due in four
annual instailments of $7,366.69, including interest of 5.378%

4} On June 9, 2015, the Counly entered into a four year lease agreement, secured with COPsync hardware and
software with Government Capital Corporation, with a maturity of July 1, 2019, payments are due in four
annual installments of $34,736.39, including interest of 3.373%

5) On Cctober 2, 2015, the County entered into a four year lease agreement, secured with a code enforcement
vehicle with Government Capital Corporation, with a maturity of November 30, 2019, payments are due in four
annual installments of $10,667.80, including interest of 4.127%

6) On August 20, 2018, the Gounly entered into a five year lease agreement, secured with communication and
elaction equipment with Government Capital Gorporation, with a maturity of October 15, 2023, payments are
are due in five annual installments of $137,614.69, including interest of 3.39%

Asset:
Machinery and Equipment $473,488
Vehicles 811,796
Total 1,285,284
Less: accumuiated depreciation (434,303)
Total $850,981

Commitments under capitalized lease agreements for facilities and eguipment provide for minimum future
lease payments as of September 30, 2018, as follows:

Year Ending September 30:

2019 $ 346,017
2020 303,800
2021 243,750
2022 243,750
2023 137,615
Total Minimum Rentals $ 1,274,932
Less: amount representing interst (107,605}
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ 1,167,327

39




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

H. Fund Balances

The County has restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance as follows.

Restricted Fund Balance:

Federal or Siate Funds Grant Restriction $2,723,407
Retirement of Long-Term Debt 53,514
$2,776,921

Committed Fund Balance:
Construction 468,320
488,320
Unassigned Fund Balance 1,348,262
1,348,262
Total Fund Balance % 4,593,503

L Risk Management

The County is exposed fo various risks of loss related fo torts, theft, damage or destruction of assels, ermors and
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2015, the County purchased commercial
insurance o cover general liabiliies. There were no significant reductions in coverage in the past fiscal year and
there were no settlements exceeding insurance coverage for any of the past three fiscal years.

1.

Pension Plan

Plan Description

The County's pension plan {"Plan") is a non-traditional, joint contributory, defined beneflt plan which provides
retirement, disability and death benefils to Plan members and beneficiaries Brooks County provides retirement,
disability, and death for all of its full-time emplyees through a nontradiional defined benefit
pension plan in the statewide Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS). TCDRS is qualified pension
under Section 401(a) of Internal Revenue Code. The Board of Trustees of TCDRS is responsible for the

administration of the statewide agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system consisting of 535 non
traditional defined benefit plans. TCDRS In the aggregate issues a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) is ~
avalilable upon request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P.O. Box 2034, Austin, TX 78768-2034. The plan provisions
are adopted by the governing body of the employer, within the options available in the Texas statutes governing
TCDRS (TCDRS ACT). Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 10 or more years of service with 30 years of
service regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and years of service equals 80 or more.

Members are vested after 8 years of employment with any organization with an accredited plan (not just the County),

but must leave their accumulated coniributions in the plan to receive any employer-financed benefit. Members
who withdraw their personal contributions Ina a lump sum are not entitled to any amounts coniributed by their employer.
Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’s deposits to the plan, with interest, and employer-
financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the governing body of the employer

within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the resulting benefils can be expected fo be
adequately financed by the employer's commitment to contribute. At retirement, death, disability, the benefit

is calculated by converting the sum of the employee's accumulated deposits and the employer-financed monetary
credits to a monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act.
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2.

Contributions

The employer has elected the annually determined contribution rate {variable-rate} plan provisions of the TCDRS
Act. The pian Is funded by monthly contributions from both empleyee members and the employer based on the
covered payroll of employee members. Under the TCDRS Act, the contribution rate of the employer is actuariaily
determined annually. it was 1.44% and 1.94 for the calendar year 2017 and 2018. The deposit rate payable by
the employee members the rate of 4.00% as adopted by the governing body of the employer within the options

Brooks County's contributions to TCDRS for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 were $67,100 and were
equal to the required contributions.

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized
in the following table:

Geometric Real
Rate of Return

Target (Expected Minus
Asset Class Allocation Inflation}
US Equities 11.50% 4.55%
Private Equity 16.00% 7.55%
Gilobal Equities 1.50% 4.85%
international Equities - Developed 11.00% 4.55%
international Equitles - Emerging 8.00% 5.55%
Investment - Grade Bonds 3.00% 0.75%
Strategic Credit 8.00% 4.12%
Direct Lending 10.00% 8.06%
Distressed Debt 2.00% 6.30%
REIT Equities 2.00% 4.05%
Master Limited Partnerships 3.00% 6.00%
Private Real Estate Partnerships 6.00% 6.26%
Hedge Funds 18.00% 4.10%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.10%. The discount rate Is
the single rate of return that, when applied to all projected benefit paymenis results in an actuarial present
value of projected benefit payments equal to the total of the following:

1. The actuarial present value of benefit payments projected to be made In future periods in which (a}
the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net posilion is projected fo be greater than the benefit
payments that are projected fo be made in that period and (b) pension plan assets up to that point are
expected to be invested using a sirategy to achieve the long-term rate of relurn, calculated using the
fong-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments.

2. The actuarial present vale of projected benefit payments not included in {1), calculated using the
municipal bond rate.

Therefore, if plan investments in a given future year are greater than projected benefit payments in that year
and are invested such that they are expected to eamn the long-term rate of return, the discount rate applied fo
projected benefit payments in that year should be the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments. If
future years exist where this is not the case, then an Index rate reflecting the yleld on a 20-year, tax-exempt
municipal bond should be used to discount the projected benefit payments for those years.

The determination of a future date when plan investments are not sufficient to pay projected benefit payments

is ofthen referred fo as a dsplelion date projection. A depletion date projection compares projections of the
pension plan's fiduciary net position to projected benefit payments and aims to determine a future date, if one
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exists, when the fiduciary net position is projecled to be less than projected benefit payments. If an evaluation
of the sufficiency of the projecied fiduciary net position compared to projected benefit payments can be made
with sufficient reffability without performing a depletion date projection, allernatives methods {o deiermine

sufficiently may be applied.

In order to determine the discount rale to be used by the employer we have used an alternative method to
determine the sufficiency of the fiduciary net position in all future years. Our alternative method reflects the
funding requirements under the employer's funding policy and the legal requirements under the TCDRS Act.

1. TCDRS has a funding policy where the Unfunded Acihuaral Accrued Liability (UAAL) shalb be
amortized as a level percent of pay over 20-year closed layered periods.

2, Under the TCDRS Act, the employer is legally required to make the contribution specified in the funding
policy.

3. The employer's assets are projected to exceed its accrued liabilities in 20 years or less. When this
peoing is reached, the employer is still required fo contribute at least the normal cost.

4. Any increased cost due to the adoption of a COLA is required to be funded over a period of 15 years,
if applicable.

Based on the above, the projected fiduciary net position is determined to be sufficient compared to projected
benefit paymenis. Based on the expected level of cash flows and investment returns to the system, the
fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability is projected to increase from its current level in
future years.

Since the projected fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay projected benefit payments in all
future years, the discount rate for purposes of calculating the total pension liability and net pension liability of
the employer is equal to the long-term assumed rate of return on investments. This long-term assumed rate of
return should be net of investments expenses, but gross of administrative expenses for GASE 68 purposes.
Therefore, we have used a discount rate of 8.10%, net of all expenses, increased by 0.10% io be gross of

administrative expenses.

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension  Plan Fiduclary Net Pansion

3. Ghanges in Net Pension Liability Liability Net Position Liability
(@) (b) (@} - (b}
Balance at 12/31/2016 $ 17,868,923 § 18,883,380 § {(1,014,457)
Changes for the year
Service cost 393,379 - 393,379
Interest 1,424,033 - 1,424,033

Change of benefit terms - - -
Difference between expected

and actual experience (130,120) - (130,120)
Changes of assumptions 158,636 - 158,636
Contributions - employer - 52,049 {52,049)
Contributions - employee - 144,677 (144,577}
Net investment income - 2,736,790 (2,736,790)
Benefit payments, including

refunds of employee contributions (1,390,365) {1,380,365) -
Administrative expense - (13,551) 13,551
Other changes - {36,517} 36,517

Net changes 455,663 1,492,983 {(1,037,420)
Balance at 12/31/2017 - % 18324486 $ 20,376,363 (2,051,877)
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4.  Sensitivity of the net pension liabiiity to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Counly, calculated using the discount rate of 8.1%, as
well as what the County's nei pension liabllity would be If it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1-percentage-point lower {7.1%) or 1-percentage-point higher (9.1%) than the current rate.

1% Decrease in Discount Increase in
Discount Rate Rate Discount Rate
(7.1%) (8.1%) {9.1%)
County's net pension liability $ (162,934} § (2,051,877) % (3,678,593}

5. Pension Expense and Deferred Outilows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $188,519.

At September 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual
gconomic experience 3 - 3 335,519
Changes in actuarial assumptions 108,757 -
Difference between projected and actual
investment earnings - 164,316
Contributions subseguent o the measure-
ment date 53,590 -
Total $ 159,347 ‘ % 499,835

$53,590 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension {fability for the year ending September

30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outfiows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended Dec. 31:

2019 $ (64,225)
2020 % 142,915
2021 $ {231,342}
2022 $ (251,3286)
2023 $ -
Thereafter $ -
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K. Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

1.

Plan Description

The County's OPEB plan ("Plan"} is a non-raditional, joint contributory, defined benefit plan which provides
retirement, disability and death benefits to Plan members and beneficiaries Brooks County provides refirement,
disability, and death for all of ils full-ime emplyees through a nontraditional defined benefit
pension plan in the statewide Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS). TCDRS is qualified pension
under Section 4071(a} of Internal Revenue Code. The Board of Trustees of TCDRS is responsible for the

adminisiration of the statewide agent mulfiple-employer public employee retirement system consisting of 535 non
traditional defined benefit plans. TCDRS in the aggregate Issues a comprehensive annual financial report {CAFR) is
available upon request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P.O. Box 2034, Austin, TX 78768-2034. The plan provisions
are adopted by the governing body of the employer, within the options avaitable in the Texas statutes governing
TCDRS (TCDRS ACT). Members can retire af ages 60 and above with 10 or more years of service with 30 years of
setvice regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and years of service equals 80 or mors.

Members are vested after 8 years of employment with any organization with an accredited plan (not just the County),

but must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to receive any employerfinanced benefit. Members
who withdraw their personal contributions ina a lump sum are not enitied to any amounts contributed by their employer.
Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee's deposits fo the plan, with interest, and employer-
financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credils is adopted by the governing body of the employer

within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the resulting benefits can be expecied 1o be
adequately financed by the employer's commitment io contribute. At retirement, death, disability, the benaefit

is calculated by converting the sum of the employee's accumulated deposits and the employer-financed monetary
credits to a monthly annuity using annuity purchase raies prescribed by the TCDRS Act.

Contributions

The employer has elected the annually determined contribution rate (variable-rate) plan provisions of the TCDRS
Act. The plan is funded by monthly contributions from both employee members and the employer based on the
covered payrolt of employee members. Under the TCDRS Act, the contribution rate of the employer is actuarially
determined annually. It was 0.67% and 0.60% for the calendar year 2017 and 2018, The deposit rate payabie by
the employee members the rate of 4.00% as adopted by the governing body of the employer within the options
avallable in the TCDRS.

Brooks County's coniributions to TCDRS for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 were $22,860 and were
equai io the required contributions,
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Total OPEB
3. Changes in Net OPEB Liability Liability
(@
Balance at 12/31/2016 $ 307,767
Changes for the year
Service cost 11,906
Interast 11,847
Change of benefit terms -
Difference between expected
and actual experience (22,980)
Changes of assumptions 11,135
Contributions - employer -
Contibutions - employee -
Net investment income -
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions (12,650)
Adminisirative expense -
Other changes -
Net changes (742)
Balance at 12/31/2017 $ 307,025

Increase (Decrease)

4. Sensitivity of the net pension liabllity to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the County, calculated using the discount rale of 3.44%, as
well as what the Couniy's net OPEB labilily would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1-percentage-point lower {2.44%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.44%) than the current rate.

1% Decrease in Discount Increase in
Discount Rate Rate Discount Rate
{7.1%) {(8.1%} {8.1%)
County's net pension labifity $ 360,773 % 307,025 $ 264,649

L. Heal e Cover

During the year ended September 30, 2018, employees of the County were covered under Blue Cross Blue Shield.
The County contributed $576 per pay period per employee and dependents to the Plan.

M. Commitme i i |

1.  Contingencies

The County participates tn grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor
agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies; therefore, to the extent that the County has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the
grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectibility of any related receivable may be
impaired. In the opinion of the County, there are no significant contingent liabllities relating to compliance with
the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the
accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies.

2. Litigation

No reporiable litigation was pending against the County at September 30,2018,
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N.  Closure and Posielosure Care Cost

State and federal laws and regulafions require the County to place a final cover on its Brooks County Landfill site
when it stops aceepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years
after closure. Although closure and posfclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the fandfill stops
accepting waste, the County reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in
each period based on landfill capacity used as of sach balance sheet date. The $130,680.G0 reported as Jandfill
closure and postclosure care liability at September 30, 2018, represents the cumulative amount reported to date
based on the use of 80 percent of the estimated capacity of the landfil. The Counity will recognize the remaining
estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $130,680.00 as the remalning estimated capacity is filled. These
amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and posiclosure care in 2018. The landfilt is still open
as of 2018. Actual cost may be higher due io inftation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

The County is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a trust to finance
closure and posiclosure care, The County is in compliance with these requirements, and, at September 30, 2018,
investments of $130,680.00 fair value are held for these purposes. These are reported as restricted asseis on the
balance sheet. The County expects that future inflation costs will be paid from interest earnings on these annual
conitibutions. However, if interest eamings are inadeqguate or additional postclosure care requirements are
delermined (due to changes in technology or applicable laws or regulations, for example), these costs may need fo
be covered by charges fo future landfill users or from future tax revenue.

0. Subseguent Events

The County has evaluated subsequent events through March 12, 2019, the date whcih the financial statements were
available to be issued.

P. Reclassification of Beginning Net Position

The balance of net position at the beginning of the fiscal year 2018 has been restated from the balance previously
reported In 2017, to reflect a reclassification of net assets of ($289,836) to reflect a net prior period adjustment to
adopt GASB 75 for Other Post employement benefits. A prior period adjustment of $66,610 was needed in the the
governmental funds to correct an understatement of assets from previous year. Consequently, net position for 2017 has
been restated to reflect these amounts. The effect of the implementation is a decrease of ($223,226) in ending net

position as of September 30, 2018.

Q. (GASBE3

(GASB 83 - Fipancial Reporting of Deferred Oufflows of Resources, Deferred inflows of Resources, and Net Position
provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred
outflows of resources are the consumption of net asseis by the government that is appiicable to a future reporting
period and deferred inflows of resources are the acquisition of net assets by the government thai is applicable to
future reporting period. Deferred ouiflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are incoporated into the
definitions of the required components of the residual measure and that measure is renamed as net position, rather

than net assets.
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

REVENUE:

Taxes:

General Property Taxes
License and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forieitures
Fees of Office

Investrnent Eamings
Miscellaneous Revenues
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
General Government
Commissioners' Court
Suppiies
Total Commissionars’ Court
County Judge
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Tofal Couniy Judge
County Clerk
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total County Clerk
Countfy Auditor
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total County Auditor
County Treasurer
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total County Treasurer
TaxAssesor-Collector
Personal Services
Other Services and Charges
Total Tax Assessor-Collector
Courthouse and Buildings
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Tofal Courthouse and Buildings
Voter Registration
Parsonal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Voters Registration

EXHIBIT B-1
Page 1 of 4

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Posifive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
3,290,207 $ 3,290,207 $ 3278491 $ (11,7186)

2,700 2,700 2,954 254

124,700 124,700 185,994 61,294
71,200 71,200 48,222 (22,978)
1,599,500 1,699,500 1,837,106 237,606
77,000 77,000 236,766 158,766
8,000 8,000 15,674 7,874
7,000 7,000 111,467 104,467
5,180,307 5,180,307 5,716,674 536,367
3,000 3,000 85 2,915
3,000 3,000 85 2,915
85,256 85,504 76,929 8,575
1,000 10,000 842 9,058
4,535 4,286 1,881 2,405
90,790 99,790 79,752 20,038
135,008 135,491 135,003 398

1,300 929 928 -

1,400 1,288 1,049 239
137,708 137,708 137,071 637
320,664 321,971 314,311 7,660

5,600 5,000 4,300 700

12,000 10,693 6,159 4,534
337,664 337,664 324,770 12,894
135,006 133,643 128,267 5,376

2,500 1,500 1,433 67

2,500 3,016 2,815 201
140,006 138,160 132,515 5,645
101,507 101,907 101,640 267
146,900 146,500 204,062 {57,562)
248,467 248,407 305,702 (57,295)

98,528 89,077 88,115 962
17,250 16,830 16,575 355
206,460 238,492 236,840 1,652
322,238 344,498 341,530 2,968
43,872 44,051 43,966 85
700 521 424 97
34,800 36,647 35,514 1,133
79,372 81,218 79,804 1,314
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Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Pasitive
QOriginal Final Actual (Negative)
Non-Departmental

Personal Sarvices 76,720 93,936 93,535 401

Supplies 40,000 53,608 53,606 -

Other Services and Charges 607,374 586,324 587,695 {1,375}
Total Non-Departmeniat 724,094 733,865 734,840 {975}
Total General Governmeni 2,083,279 2,124,311 2,136,169 {11,858)

Judicial
County court

Personai Services 72,605 71,405 68,122 3,283

Other Setvices and Charges 7,000 7,000 447 6,553
Totai County Court 79,505 78,405 68,569 9,836

District Court

Personal Services 113,018 112,713 91,565 21,148

Supplies 52,092 82,104 51,104 1,000

Cther Services and Charges 20,000 20,203 10,053 10,240
Total District Courl 185,110 185,110 152,722 32,388

District Clerk

Personal Services 128,346 129,802 122,644 7,158

Supplies 1,500 1,500 758 742

Other Services and Charges 1,275 819 463 356
Total District Clerk 132,121 132,121 123,865 8,256

Justice of the Peace

Personal Services 370,955 369,452 360,317 9,135

Supplies 4,000 5,315 4,937 378

Other Services and Charges 400 580 490 a0
Total Justice of the Peace 375,355 375,347 365,744 8,603 |

County Aticrney

Personal Services 95,792 96,113 95,257 856

Supplies 750 750 663 87

QOther Services and Charges 1,600 1,279 170 1,108
Tolal County Attorney 98,142 88,142 96,090 2,052

District Attorney

Personal Services 39,857 39,9056 39,843 62

Supplies 1,000 952 936 16
Total District Atforney 40,857 40,857 40,779 78

Juvenile Courl

Personal Services 7,000 8,100 8,100 -

Other Services and Charges 300 300 - 300
Total Juvenile Courl 7,300 8,400 8,100 2300
Total Judiciai 918,390 918,381 855,869 62,612

Public Safely
Adult Probation

Personal Services 66,150 66,150 66,150 --

Supplies 100 100 62 38
Total Adult Probation 66,250 66,250 66,212 38

Constahles

Personal Services 112,107 113,391 113,029 362

Supplies 800 381 194 187

Other Services and Charges 18,072 19,197 14,866 4,331
Total Constables 130,979 132,969 128,089 4,880
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Sheriff
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Sherift

County Jail
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Counly Jail
Fire Marshall & LEPC Coordinator
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Fire Marshall & LEPC
Toial Public Safety
Public Transportation
Texas Department of Publfic Safety
Personal Services
Supplies
Total Texas Department of Public Safety
Weigh Station
Personal Services
Other Services and Charges
Toial Weigh Station
Total Public Transporiation
Health and Welfare
Cther Services and Charges
Total Health and Welfare
Out-Patient Clinic
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Servicas and Charges
Total Out-Patient Clinic
Indigent
Other Services and Charges
Total Indigent
Tofal Health and Welfare
Culiure and Recreation
Library
Personal Services
Supplies
Total Library
Total Culture and Recreation
Conservation
County Extension Ageni
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total County Extension Agent
Total Conservation

EXHIBIT B-1

Page 3 of 4
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
945,285 920,709 879,863 40,846
85,900 84,778 77,942 6,836
170,935 158,642 528,696 (370,054}
503,592 457,524 454,760 2,764
53,000 91,739 91,105 634
119,300 128,630 126,495 135
5 ; 5 !B E 2 3 )i ¥
18,500 19,500 17,004 2,496
500 500 - 500
9,048 9,048 9,048 wa
29,048 29,048 26,062 2,996
2,104,289 2,068,288 2,379,214 {310,926)
33,273 13,828 10,796 3,032
500 3,500 3,380 120
33,773 17,328 14,176 3,152
39,857 40,016 39,087 29
1,850 1,691 1,300 391
41,707 41,707 41,287 420
75,480 59,035 55,463 3,672
19,500 21,800 20,5314 1,269
19,500 21,800 20,531 1,269
45,930 48,061 45,931 130
1,000 1,000 832 108
2,000 1,869 1,438 431
48,930 48,930 48,261 669
107,000 107,000 96,251 10,749
107,000 107,000 96,251 10,749
175,430 177,730 165,043 12,687
33,285 33,373 33,290 83
5,000 4,912 3,004 1,908
38,285 38,285 36,294 1,991
38,285 38,285 36,294 1,991
76,491 76,530 63,413 13,117
4,000 3,960 1,981 1,979
20,138 20,138 15,498 4,640
100,629 100,629 80,892 198,737
100,629 100,629 80,892 19,737
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Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Posllive
Original Finaj Actual (Negative)
Debt Service:
Principal 16,027 16,027 108,533 (90,506)
Interest and Fiscal Charges - 15,685 17,637 (1,952)
Total Expenditures 5,511,809 5,518,370 5,833,114 (314,744)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (331,502} (338,063) (116,440} 221,623
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES}):
Transfers In 435,000 435,000 333,408 {101,592)
Transfers Out (450,490) (453,890) (453,890) -
Capital Leases -- - 482,617 (482,617)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {15,490) (18,880} 362,135 {381,025}
Net Change in Fund Balances {346,992) {(356,953) 245,695 602,648
Fund Balances - Beginning 1,102,667 1,102,667 1,102,567 -
Fund Balances - Ending § 755,675 § 745614 §_ 1348262 & 602,648
|

50




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

ROAD & BRIDGE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2018

REVENUE:
Taxes:

General Property Taxes
License and Permits
Charges for Services

_Investment Earnings
Miscelianeous Revenues
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Public Transportation
Public Transportation
Personai Services
Supplies

Other Services and Charges
Total Public Transportation
Total Public Transporiation

Debt Service:
Principal

Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Total Other Financing Sources (tses)

Net Change in Furd Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

EXHIBIT B-2

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Puositive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 1,106,387 § 1,106,387 $ 1,120,495 § 14,108
250,000 250,000 249,184 (8186)
26,000 26,000 15,758 {10,242)
2,500 2,500 4,325 1,825
- -- 3,353 3,353
1,384,887 1,384,887 1,393,115 8,228
909,887 927,833 848,415 79,418
90,000 100,500 89,132 11,368
520,000 514,054 181,752 332,302
1,519,887 1,542,387 1,119,293 423,088
1,519,887 1,642,387 1,119,299 423,088
45,000 45,000 44,798 202
5,000 5,000 4,638 362
1,569,887 1,592,387 1,168,735 423,652
(185,000) {(207,500) 224,380 431,880
(185,000) {207,500) 224,380 431,880
553,330 553,330 553,330 -
$ 368,330 § 345,830 $ 777,710 % 431,880
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS EXHIBIT B-3
GEQ GROUP FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounis Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUE:
Intergovernmental $ 10,315,000 $% 10,315,000 § 11,387,052 $ 1,082,052
investment Earnings -- - 558 558
Total revenues 10,315,000 10,315,000 11,397,610 1,082,610
EXPENDITURES:
Public Safety
Other Services and Charges 10,005,000 10,005,000 10,155,669 {150,669)
Tolal Public Safety 10,006,000 10,005,000 10,155,669 {150,669)
Total Public Safety 16,005,000 10,005,000 10,155,669 {150,669}
Total Expenditures 10,005,000 10,005,000 10,155,669 {150,669)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
CQver (Under) Expenditures 310,000 310,000 1,241,941 931,841
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers Out {310,000} {310,000) (333,4086) {23,408)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uises) (310,000} (310,000) (333,406) 23,406
Net Change in Fund Balances - - 908,535 908,535
Fund Balances - Beginning 15 15 15 -
Fund Balances - Ending $ i5 § i5 & 908,550 § 908,535
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EXHIBIT B-4

BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COUNTY'S
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED BATIOS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Pian Year Ended December 31,

2017 2016 2015 2014

Total pension liability:
Service cost $393,379 8640,791 $475,891 $391,458
Interest 1,424,033 1,438,501 1,383,332 1,348,689
Changes of benefit terms (661,864) (79,047} -
Differences between expecied

and actual experience (130,120) (746,318) 37,528 (48,778)
Changes of assumptions 158,636 - 197,006 -
Benefit payments, including refunds

of employee contributions {1,390,385) (1,221,745) (1,207,860} (1,269,813)
Net change in total pension liabtlity 455,563 (450,635} 816,940 421,453
Total pension ifability - beginning 17,868,922 18,319,657 17,502,617 17,081,164
Tatal pension liability - ending () 518,324,485 $17,868,822 $18,319,557  §17,502617
Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions - employer $52,049 $262,626 $260,029 $235,097
Contributions - employee 144,577 261,983 257,083 199,961
Net investment income 2,738,790 1,362,821 (275,540} 1,252,665
Benefit payments, including refunds

of employes contributions (1,390,365) (1,221,745}  (1,207,860)  (1,269,913)
Adminisirafive expense (13,551) (14,701) (13,499 {14,707)
Other (36,517} (81,629) 34,390 {53,067)
Net change in plan fiduciary

net position 1,492,983 559,355 (945,397) 350,036
Plan fiduciary net position

- beginning 18,883,380 18,324,027 19,269,424 18,819,387
Plan fiduciary net position

- ending (b) $20,376,363 $18,883,382  $18,324,027  $19,269,423
County's net pension

liability - ending (a) - (b} {$2,051,878) _ ($1,014,460) ($4,470) _ ($1,766,805)
Plan fiduciaty net position

as a percentage of the

total pension liability 111.20% 97.01% 100.02% 110.09%
Covered-employee payroll $3,614,416 $3,730,467 $3,672,617 $2,856,590
County's nat pension

liability as a percentage of

coverad-employee payroil -56.77% -27.19% -0.12% -51.85%

Notes to Schadule:
* This schedule is presented to llustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.
However, untl! a full 10-year frend is compiled,  this schedule provides the information only for

those years for which information is available.
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EXHIBIT B-5

BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF COUNTY CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Fis Fie Fi Fisoal Year
2018 2017 20186 2015

Actuarially determined contribution 3 67,100 $ 52,049 § 262,628 § 260,029
Contributions in relation o the

actuarially determined contribution (67,100) (52,049) (262,626) {260,029)
Contrlbution deficlency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered-smployee payroll $ 3700570% 3614416% 3,730467 $ 3,672,617
Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 1.81% 1.44% 7.04% 7.08%

Notes to Schedule of Contributions

Valuation date:

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which

contributions are reporied.
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining armortization period 1.8 years

Assget valuation method 5-year smoothed value, fund value

tnflafion 3.00%

Salary increases 4.90%

Investment rate of return 8.00%

Retirement age Members who are eligible for service retirement are assumed to

commence receiving benedit payments based on age. The average
age at service retirement for recent retirees is 61,

Mortality In the 2015 actuarlal valuation, assumed life expectancies were
adjusied as a result of adopting a new projection scate {110% of
the MP-2014 Ultimate Scale) for 20114 and later. Previously,
Scale AA had been used. The base table is the RP-2000 table
projected with Scale AA to 2014,

* This schedule is presented 1o illustrate the requirement to show infarmation for 10 years. Howaver,

until a full 10-year trend is compiled, this schedule provides the information for those years for
which information is available.
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TC SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December
31, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are

viethods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age

Amortization Method Straight-line amortization of expected working life
Remaining Amortization Period NA

Asset Valuation Method NA

Inflation NA

Salary Increases NA

3.44%, based on 20-year Bond GO Index published by bondbuyer.com as

Investment Rate of Return of December 28, 2017

Retirement Age NA

Mortality See Tables 1 thru 4 in the Milliman Valuation Report
Other Information: There were no benefit changes during the year.

56




This page is left blank intentionally.




Combining Statements and Budget Comparisons
as Supplementary Information

This supplementary information includes financiai statements and schedules not required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.




EXHIBIT C-1

BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Tofal
Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental
Revenue Service Projects Funds (See
Funds Fund Funds Exhibit A-3)
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 945030 § 53514 § 468,320 $ 1,468,864
Restricted Cash 129,421 - - 129,421
Due from Other Funds 7,337 -- - 7,337
Total Assets $ 1,081,788 § 53514 % 468,320 § 1,603,622
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable § 37,304 % - $ - $ 37,304
Due to Other Funds 7,337 - -- 7,337
Total Lighilities 44,6841 - - 44 641
DEFFERED INFLLOWS OF RESOURGCES
Fund Balances:
Restiicted Fund Balances:
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 1,037,147 - - 1,037,147
Retirement for Long-Term Debt -- 53,514 - 53,514
Committed Fund Balance
Constuction - -- 468,320 468,320
Unassigned Fund Balance - - - -
Total Fund Balance 1,037,147 53,514 468,320 1,558,981
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 1,081,788 § 53514 % 468,320 § 1,603,622
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Revenue:
Taxes:!
General Properly Taxes
General Sales and Use Taxes
License and Permils
Intergovernmenial
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Fees of Office
Investment Earnings
Misceflaneous Revenues
Contributions & Ponations
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Judicial
Pubilic Safety
Public Transporiation
Health and Welfare
Cuiture and Recrealion
Economic Davelopment and Assistance
Debt Service:
Princinai
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Undet) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Capilal Leases
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses})

Net Ghange in Fund Balahces
Fund Balances - Beginning

Prior Period Adjusiment
Fund Balances - Ending

EXHIBIT C-2

Total
Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental
Revenue Service Projects Funds (See
Funds Fund Funds Exhibit A-5}

- $ 591,770 - 591,770
274,390 - - 274,390
147,044 - - 147,044
877,665 - - 877,665
143,685 - - 143,685
179,180 - v 179,190
112,834 - - 112,834
4,497 775 31 5,303
9,469 - - 9,469
11,230 - -- 11,230
1,760,004 592,545 31 2,352,580
6,178 - 152,178 158,356
189,170 - - 199,170
1,446,240 - - 1,446,240
47,199 - 17,665 64,764
261,511 - - 261,511
1,012 - - 1,012
219,317 - - 219,317
32,506 490,000 - 522,508
2,230 157,748 - 159,978
2,215,363 647,748 169,743 3,032,854
{455,359} {65,203} (168,712) {(680,274)
471,254 31,000 - 502,254
{17,361) (31,000} (5) (48,366)

- - 620,474 620,474
453,893 - 620,469 1,074,362
(1,466) (55,203) 450,757 394,088
1,038,613 42,106 17,563 1,008,282

u- 66,611 -- 66,611

1,037,147 % 53,514 468,320 1,558,981
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted Cash

Due from Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES;
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Qthar Funds
Total Liabilities

DEFFERED INFLOWS OF RESOURCGES

Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balances;
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction
Committed Fund Balance
Unassigned Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilitles and Fund Balance

Alrport
Landfif Consolidation Improvement Chapter
Fund Fund Fund 19
L 60,567 & 11,574 % 3296 $ 1,805
3 60,567 % 11,574 % 3,296 % 1,805
$ (544) § 1,866 § - $ 8
-- - -- 1,000
{544) 1,866 - 1,008
81,111 9,708 3,296 797
61,111 9,708 3,298 797
$ 60,567 § 11,574 % 3206 § 1,805
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$

70,136

$

Sheriff
Ahandoned
Vehicles

70,354

70,354

218

218

70,136

70,354

Sheriff's
Contributions
$ 3,207
$ 3,207
$ -
3,207
3,207

$ 3,207

$

39,928

$

Management &
Preservation
Fund

39,926

30,926

60

Courthouse

Security

$ 71,490

71,394

71,394

S___ 71490

EXHIBIT C-3
Page 1 0f 4

Laterat Road

Fund
$ 12,144
$ 12,144
$ -
12,144
12,144
$ 12,144




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS AND GTHER DEBITS

Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted Cash

Due from Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCGCES:
Liabilities:
Accounis Payable
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

DEFFERED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES

Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balances:
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction
Committed Fund Balance
Unassigned Fund Balance
Totai Fund Balance

Total Liabifities and Fund Balance

Prevention & County Attorney Ed Rachal
Treaiment Hot Check Homeland Sheriff
Fund Fund Security Grant
3 50,738 3 576 38,659 % 14,445
$ 50,739 § 576 38,659 % 14,445
$ 25 14 130§ 23
-- - 6,337 -
25 14 6,467 23
50,714 562 32,192 14,422
50,714 562 32,192 14,422
$ 50,739 % 576 38,659 § 14,445
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Employee
Vending Machine
Commission Fund

$ 1,336
$__ 1,30
$ -
1,336
1,336

$ 1,336

Election
Service Contract
Fund

$ 8.211

1,000
$ 8,211

$ 330

330

8,881

8,881

$ 9,211

County
Airport
$ 5,229
$___ 5299
$ -
5,229
5,229

o 5o

62

$

19,202

s___ o200

Law
Library
Fund

19,202

19208,

19,202

$

EXHIBIT C-3
Page 2 of 4

Code
Enforcement Arret
Fee Fund

18,178

18,178

19,079




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted Cash

Due from Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilitles:
Accounis Pgyable
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

DEFFERED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES

Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balances:
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction
Committed Fund Balance
Unassigned Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Federal LEOSE Justice Crt
Sheriff Arrest Siate "~ Technology
Seizure Drug Fund Allocations Fund
$ 20,515 % 3611 § 22310 % 60,891
6,337 - -- -
$ 26,852 % 3611 & 22310 % 60,891
¢ 5,095 $ - $ - " § -
5,085 - - --
21,757 3,611 22,310 60,891
21,757 3,611 22,310 60,891
$ 26,852 % 3611 § 22310 §% 60,891
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Drainage
Improvemenis

DRS 220016

7,000

7,000

$ 7,000

Heatth Use
Sales Tax
Fund

$ 45,482
129,421

$ 174,810

$ 22,417

22417

152,493

152,493

$ 174,910

Ed Rachal
Audio Visual
Fund

$ 1,987

$ 1,987

1,087

1,987

$ 1,987

64

Drug Alcohol
Court Diversion
Program

$ 127,800

$ 127,800

$ 6,258

6,258

121,542

121,542

$ 127,800

EXHIBIT C-3
Page 3 of 4

DOJ/Federal
Account

$ -
1,843
1,843
$ 1,843




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPEGIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASBETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Hestricted Cash

Due from Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabllities:
Accounis Payable
Due fo Other Funds
Total Liabilities

DEFFERED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balances:
Federal or Siate Funds Grant Restriction
Committed Fund Balance
Unassigned Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Brush Sheriff L ocal Sheriff
Country Border Security  Federal Seizure Pre-Triaf
Water District Fund Fund Fund
$ 50 § 24,740 § 147,012 § 7.902
% 50 % 24,740 % 147,012 % 7,800
$ - $ - $ - $ -
50 24,740 147,012 7,509
50 24,740 147,012 7.909
$ 50 $% 24740 % 147,012 § 7,909
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EXHIBIT C-3

Page 4of 4
Total
Nonmajor
Special
Juvenile Ed Rachal Ed Rachal J.M. Alaniz Revenue
Probation Human Rights Carter Family Fairgrounds Funds (See
Match Fund Foundation Fees Fund Exhibit C-1)
$ 38,318 $ 308 $ 1,600 $ 1,808 $ 945,030
- -- -= -- 129,421
-- - - - 7,337
3 38,318 $ 308 $ 1,600 $ 1,808 3 1,081,788
$ 467 $ - $ - $ - % 37,304
- - - - 7,337
467 - -- - 44 641
37,851 308 1,600 1,808 1,037,147 J‘
37,861 308 1,600 1,808 1,037,147
$ 38,318 $ 308 $ 1,600 $ 1,808 $ 1,081,788
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Landfill
Fund

Texas

Consolidation

DSHS Grant Fund

Airport
Improvement
Fund

Revenue:
Taxes:

General Sales and Use Taxes $ --
License and Permiis -
Intergovernmental -
Charges for Services 103,322
Fines and Forfeitures --

Fees of Office -
Investment Earnings 350
Miscellansous Revenues -
Contributions & Donations -

949 56,382

7,360

Total revenues 103,672

949 56,382

7,360

Expenditures:

Current:
General Government -
Judiciai -
FPublic Safety 322,355
Public Transporiation --
Health and Welfare -
Culture and Recreation -
Economic Development and Assistance -

Debt Service:
Principal -
Interest and Fiscal Charges

949 -

7,360

Total Expenditures 322,355

249 79,420

7,380

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

(23,038)

Qver (Under) Expenditures (218,683}

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 270,000
Transfers Out

29,480

Total Ciher Financing Sources {Uses) 270,000

29,480

Net Change in Fund Balances 51,317

Fund Balances - Beginning . 9,794

6,452

3,256

3.296

$

L3 9,708

3,296

Fund Balances - Ending $ 61,111

67




EXHIBIT C-4

Page 1 of §
Alien Constables Sheriff
Death Chapter Abandoned Abandoned Sheriff's
Processing 19 Vehicles Vehicles Contributions
- $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - 147,044 -
60,886 640 - - -
- - 7 329 -
- -- - - 3,870
60,886 640 7 147,373 3,870
- - - - 6,178
64,286 - 3,409 128,125 -
64,286 - 3,408 128,125 6,178
(3,400) 640 (3,402) 19,248 (2,308)
3,400 - 176 - -
3,400 - 176 — o
- 640 (3.226) 19,248 (2,308)
-- 157 3,226 50,888 5,515
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Management & Prevention &
Preservation GCourthouse Lateral Road Treatment
Fund Security Fund Fund

Revenuea:

Taxes:
General 8ales and Use Taxas $ - $ - $ - $ --

License and Permits

Infergovernmentai - - 9,068 7,296

Charges for Services -

Fines and Forfeitures

Fees of Office 11,611 -

Investment Earnings 169 342 58 243

Miscellaneous Revenuss

Coniributions & Donations --
Total revenues 11,780 50,514 = . 9,126 7,539

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government -
Judicial 1,203 -- - -
Public Safety - 49,667 - -
Public Transportation -
Health and Welfare - - - 3,285
Culture and Recreation --
Economic Development and Assistance - -
Debt Service:
Principal
interest and Fiscal Charges -
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Cver {Under} Expenditures 10,577 847 9,126

1,203 49,667 - 3,285

4,254

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers Ou{
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - -

Net Change in Fund Balances 10,5677 847 9,126 4,254

Fund Balances - Beginning 29,349 70,547 3,018 46,460
Fund Balances - Ending $ 39,926 % 71,394 § 12144 § 50,714
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EXHIBIT C-4

Page20f5
County Attorney Ed Rachal Employee Election
Hot Check Homeland Shetiff Vending Machine Service Contract
Fund Security Grant Commission Fund Fund
- $ - $ - s - $ -
- 104,719 84,600 - -
450 - -- = -
16 - 260 - 41
- - - 852 7,367
466 104,719 84,860 652 ‘ 7,408
3,801 - - - -
-- 87,193 39,800 381 9,233
|
- - - - - |
- - 32,506 - -
- -~ 2,230 - -
3,801 87,193 74,536 381 9,233
(3,335) 17,526 10,324 271 {1,825)
— - - a -
- - {15,848) -~ -
- - (15,848) 3 -
(3,335) 17,5286 (5,524) 274 {1,825)
3,897 14,666 19,946 1,062 10,706
562 $ 32,192 $ 14,422 $ 1,336 $ 8,881
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Revenue:
Taxes:

General Sales and Use Taxes
License and Permits
Intergovernmentai
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Fees of Office
Investment Farnings
Miscellaneous Revenues
Coniributions & Donations

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Judicial
Public Safety
Public Transporiation
Heailth and Welfare
Cuilture and Recreation
Economic Development and Assistance
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under} Expendiiures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers Oul
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses}

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

Law Code
County Library Enforcement Arrest Sheriff
Alrport Fund Fee Fund Seizure
- s - $ - $ -
9,292 - - -
360 3,631 36,172 -
- . - 71,352
44 95 104 124
9,696 3,926 36,278 71,476
- 4,476 46,188 62,044
39,839 - - --
39,839 4,478 46,188 62,044
(30,143) {850) (9,912) 9,432
32,000 - - -
32,000 -- -- -
1,857 {550) (9,912) 9,432
3,372 19,752 28,090 12,325
5229 § 19,202 $ 18,178 § 21,757
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Drug Fund

$

Federal
Arrest

18

18

18

18

3,583
3,611

Allocations

$

LEOSE
State

5,834

109

6,043

2,488

2,488

3,555

3,555

18,755

22,310

65,778

(14,856)

$

Justice Crt
Technology
Fund

(14,856)

75,747

60,891

72

DAS 220016

$

Drainage
Improvements

7,000
7,000

$

EXHIBIT C-4
Page 3of 5

Health Use
Sales Tax
Fund

274,390

179

258,226

$

16,343

16,343

136,150
152,498




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Ed Rachal
Audio Visual
Fund

79th Judicial
Dist/Drug
Alcohol Fund

TXCDBG
Contract
#7215075

Drug Alcohol
Court Diversion
Program

Revenue:
Taxes:

General Sales and Use Taxes $ - $
License and Permiis --
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services -

Fines and Forfeitures -
Fees of Office -
Investment Earnings 9
Miscellaneous Revenues 1,450
Contributions & Donations -

100,004

218,368

107,838

718

Total revenues 1,459

100,094

108,557

Expenditures:

Current:
General Government -
Judicial
Public Safety -
Public Transportation -
Health and Welfare ' -
Cufture and Recreation 1,012
Economic Development and Assistance -

Debt Service:
Principal -
Interest and Fiscal Charges -

100,094

218,368

128,388

Total Expenditures 1,012

218,368

128,388

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 447

{19,831)

Other Financing Sources (Uses);
Transfers In
Transfers Out : -

Total Cther Financing Sources (Uses) -
Net Change in Fund Balances 447

Fund Balances - Beginning 1,540

(19,831)

141,373

Fund Balances - Ending $ 1987 &

$

121,542
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EXHIBIT C-4

Page 4 of 5
Brush Sheriff Local Sheriff Constable
DQJiFederal Counfry Border Security Federal Seizure Seizure
Account Water District Fund Fund Fund

- $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - 29,383 58,029 -
- - - 936 -
- - 29,383 58,965 -
28,717 - 29,720 108,124 -~
28,717 - 29,720 106,124 -
(28,717) - (337) {47,159} -

.- - - - {176)

- - - - {(176)

(28,717} - {337) (47,159) (176)

30,560 50 25,077 194,171 176

1,843 $ 50 $ 24,740 % 147,012 $ --
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2018

Juvenile
Pre-Trial Probation

Fund Match

Revenue:
Taxes:

General Sales and Use Taxes 3 - $ -
License and Permits --
Infergovernmental
Charges for Services -
Fines and Forfeitures -
Fees of Office -
Investment Earnings 24
Miscellaneous Revenues -
Contributions & Donations -

Total revenies

4,830 126,970

Expenditures:

Current:
General Government
Judicial -
Public Safety - 265,129
Public Transportation -
Health and Welfare -
Culture and Recreation --
Economic Development and Assisfance -

Debt Service:
Principal
interest and Fiscal Charges -

Total Expenditures -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 4,854 {138,153}

Other Financing Sources {(Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers Oul

- 120,337

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 120,337

Net Change in Fund Balances 4,854 (17,822}

Fund Baiances - Beginning 3,055 55,673

Fund Balances - Ending $ 7,909 $ 37851

75

4,854 126,870

285,129

TJPC-E
VERTEX
FUND

) (1,337)
{1,337)
(1,337)

1,337




Ed Rachal
Human Rights
Fund

18,191

(16,181}
15,848
15,848

(343)

651
308

Ed Rachai
Carter Family

Foundation

1,200

1,200

{1,200)

{1,200)

2,800
1,600

76

J.M. Alaniz
Fairgrounds

Fees Fund

225

225

225

225

1,583
1,808

EXHIBIT C-4
Page 5 of 5

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds {See

Exhibit C-2)

274,380
147,044
877,665
143,685
179,180
112,834
4,497
2,469
11,230

1,760,004

6,178
199,170
1,446,240 |
47,199
261,611
1,012
219,317

32,506
2,230

2,215,363

(455,359)

471,254

(17,361)
453,893

(1,466)

1,038,613

1,037,147




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

LATERAL ROAD

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND .

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

REVENUE:

Intergovernmenial

Investment Earnings
Totat revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Public Safety
Cther Services and Charges
Total Public Safety
Total Public Safety
Total Expenditures
Excess.(Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under} Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Baginning
Fund Balances - Ending

EXHIBIT C-5

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Qriginal Final Actual {(Negative)
9,000 $ 9,000 % 9,068 % 68
-- - 58 58
9,000 9,000 9,126 126
11,000 11,000 - 11,000
11,000 11,000 - 11,000
11,000 11,000 - 11,000
11,000 11,000 -- 11,000
(2,000} (2,000) 9,126 11,126
{2,000) {2,000) 8,126 11,126
3,018 3,018 3,018 -

1,018 § 1,018 % 12,144 % 11,126
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

HEALTH USE SALES TAX '

SPEGIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

REVENUE:
Taxes:
Genetal Sales and Use Taxes
Investment Eamings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Health and Welfare
Other Services and Charges
Total Health and Welfare
Total Health and Weltare
Total Expenditures
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOCURCES (USES):
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

EXHIBIT C-6

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual {Negative)

252,000 § 252,000 % 274,390 3 22,390
- - 179 179
252,000 252,000 274,569 22,569
262,000 262,000 288,226 3,774
262,000 262,000 258,226 3,774
262,000 262,000 258,226 3,774
262,000 262,000 258,226 3,774
{10,000} (10,000) 16,343 26,343
(10,000) (10,000) 16,343 26,343
134,476 134,476 136,150 1,674
124,476 $ 124476 & 162493 $ 28,017
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

REVENUE:
General Property Taxes
Investment Earnings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Seivice:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Tota! Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning

Increase {Decrease) in Fund Balance
Fund Balances - Ending

EXHIBIT C-7
Yariance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Criginal Final Actual (Negative)
$ 388,296 § 388,296 § 581,770 § 203,474
- - 775 775
388,296 388,206 592 545 204,248
270,000 270,000 480,000 {(220,000)
118,296 118,296 157,748 (39,452)
388,298 388,296 647,748 (259,452)
-- - (565,203) (55,203)
- - 31,000 31,000
- -- (31,000} (31,000)
- - (55,203) (55,203)
42,108 42,106 42,106 --
-- - 66,611 66,611
$ 42,106 % 42,106 & 53514 $ 11,408
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:!
Liabilities:

DEFFERED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Fund Baiances:
Restricted Fund Balances:
Committed Fund Balance
Constuction
Unassigned Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Batance

Total
Nonmajor
Capilal
Ed Rachal Brooks County Projects
Memaorial 2018 Projects Funds (See
Library Grant Fund Exhibit G-1)
24 468,296 468,320
24 468,298 468,320
24 468,296 468,320
24 468,296 468,320
24 468,296 468,320
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Revenue:
investment Eamings
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Public Transportation
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiancy) of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers Qut
Capital Leases
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

81

Ed Rachal
Memorial
Library Grant

24
24

{

Capital
Improvements
Fund

31
31

17,565

17,565

17,534)

2)
(2)

{17,536)

17,536




Brooks County
2018 Projects
Fund

152,178

152,178

(152,178)

620,474
620,474

468,206

$ 468,296

Courthouse

82

Renovation

{3)
{3)
{3)

EXHIBIT C-9

Total
Nonmajor
Capital
Projects
Funds (See
Exhibit C-2)

$ 31
31

152,178
17,565
169,743

(169,712)
(5)
620474
620,469
450,757

17,563

$ 468,320




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCREDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

REVENUE:
nvestrent Earnings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Public Transpottation
Public Transportation
Other Services and Charges
Total Public Transporiation
Total Public Transportation
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Bevenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers Oul
Total Cther Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

EXHIBIT C-10

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
$ 31 § 31 § H 3% -
31 31 31 -
7,700 7,700 17,565 (9,865)
7,700 7,700 17,565 (9,865}
7.700 7,700 17,565 {9,865)
7.700 7,700 17,565 {9,865)
(7,669) {7,669) {17,634) (9,865)
- - (@) (2)
- - 2} 2
{7,669) (7,669) (17,536) {9,867}
17,536 17,536 17,536 -
$ 9,867 § 9,867 % - $ (9,867)
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Toial Assets

LIABILITIES:
Due to Other Governments and Agencies
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

w5

o B

District
Attorney
Escrow

539,144

539,144

539,144

538,144

84

S £

Sheriff
Bond
Account

24,121

24,121

24,121
24,121

&+ 5

Payroll
Fund

28,638
28,638

28,638

28,638




Stale
Fees
Fund

185,685

185,695

185,695

185,685

Appellate
Judicial
Sysiem

40
40

40
40

County
Clerk
Fund

74,799

74,709

74,799

74,799
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EXHIBIT C-11

Page 1 of 2
District Tax Assessor
Clerk Collectar
Fund Fund :
88,202 $ 41,864
68,202 $ 41,864
68,202 $ 41,864
68,202 $ 41,864




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Due to Cther Governments and Agencies
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

EXHIBIT C-11
Page 2 of 2

Total
Sheriff Agency
Regular TCBRS Funds (See
Account Fund Exhibit A-10)
2,086 $ 20,418 $ 985,017
2,006 3 20418 $ 985,017
2,096 $ 20,418 $ 985,017
2,098 $ 20,418 $ 985,017
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS EXHIBIT C-12
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Balance Balance
Qctober 1, September 30,
2017 Additions Deductions 2018
. Payroll Fund
ASSETS
Cash & Investments $ 41,092 $ 4,854,127 % 4,866,580 § 28,639
Total Assets $ 41,082 $ 4,854,127 % 4866580 § 28,639
LIAEBILITIES
Due to Other Governmenis $ 41,092 § 4,854,127 $ 4,868,580 § 28,639
Total Liabilities $ 41,092 § 4,854,127 § 4868580 $ 28,639
State Feas Fund
ASSETS
Cash & Investments $ 166,179 § 1,129,065 $ 1,109,543 § 185,695
Total Assets $ 166,179 § 1,129,065 § 1,109,649 § 185,695
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governmenis $ 166,179 % 1,129,065 § 1,109,549 § 185,695
Total Liabilities $ 166,179 § 1,128,065 $ 1,109,549 § 185,685
Appelale Judicial System
ASSETS
Cash & Investments $ 95 § 375 % 430 $ 40
Total Assels $ 95 & 375 % 430 $ 40
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governments 3 95 % 375 § 430 & 40
Total Liabilities $ 95 & 375 % 430 % 40
District Attorney Escrow Fund
ASSETS
Cash & Investments $ 388,030 % 412,365 $ 261,242 § 539,143
Total Assets $ 388,030 % 412,355 § 261,242 539,143
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Govemments $ 388,030 % 412,356 $ 261,242 § 539,143
Total Liabilities 3 388,030 $ 412,355 $ 261,242 § 539,143
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS EXHIBIT C-12
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2017 Additions Deductions 2018
County Clerk Funds
ASSETS
Cash & investments $ 70,048 $ 93,830 $ 89,079 % 74,799
Total Assets $ 70,048 $ 93,830 $ 89,079 $ 74,799
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governments $ 70,048 $ 93,830 § 89,079 § 74,799
Total Liabilities % 70,048 § 83,830 % 89,078 § 74,799
District Clerk Funds
ASSETS
Cash & Invesiments $ 68,683 $ 145,435 § 145,917 & 68,201
Total Assets 3 68,683 $ 145435 % 145917 § 68,201
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governments $ 68,683 $ 145,435 § 145,917 $ 68,201
Total Liabilities 3 68,683 § 145,436 % 145,917 % 68,201
FICA Tax Fund
ASSETS
Cash & Investments $ 23,299 $ 572,066 $ 595,365 § -
Total Assets $ 23,299 § 672,066 $ 595365 % -
LIABILITIES
Due 1o Other Governments $ 23,299 $ 572,066 $ 595365 § -
Total Liabilities $ 23,299 § 572,066 $ 505,365 % --
Witholding Tax Fund
ASSETS
Cash & Investments $ 12,109 $ 246,166 $ 258,275 $ -
Total Assets $ 12,109 § 246,166 $ 268275 § -
LIABILITIES
Due o Other Governments $ 12,108 § 246,166 $ 258,275 § -
Total Liabilities $ 12,109 % 246,166 $ 258,275 & -
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BROOCKS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2017

EXHIBIT C-12

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2017 Additions Deduciions 2018
Tax Assessor Coliector Fund
ASSETS
Cash & Investments $ 48412 13,774,850 % 13,781,398 41,864
Total Assets $ 48,412 $ 13,774,850 $ 13,781,398 41,864
LIABILITIES
Due {o Other Governments $ 48412 % 13,774,850 % 13,781,398 41,864
Total Liabilities $ 48412 § 13,774,850 % 13,781,388 41,864
Sheriff Regular Account
ASSETS
Cash & Investments $ 1641 20,201 &% 19,746 2,096
Total Assets $ 1,641 $ 20,201 § 198,746 2.096
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governments $ 1,641 § 20,201 $ 19,746 2,096
Total Liabilities $ 1,641 § 20,201 § 19,746 2096
Sheriff Bond Account
ASSETS
Cash & lnvestments % 19,321 § 5,008 § 207 24,122
Total Assets 3 19,321 $ 5,008 § 207 24,122
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governments % 19,321 § 5,008 $ 207 24122
Total Liabilities $ 19,321 § 5,008 § 207 24,122
TCDRS Fund
ASSETS
Cash & Investments % 18,039 % 237,984 $ 235,605 20,418
Total Assetls $ 18,039 $ 237,084 % 235,605 20,418
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governments L 18,039 $ 237,984 § 235,605 20,418
Total Liabilities $ 18,039 § 237,984 § . 235,605 20,418
TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS:
ASSETS
Cash & Investments $ 856,948 $ 21,491,462 $ 21,363,393 985,017
Total Assels % 856,948 $ 21,491,462 % 21,363,393 885,017
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governments $ 856,048 % 21,491,462 $ 21,363,393 985,017
Totai Liabifities $ 856,948 § 21,491,462 § 21,363,393 985,017
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Other Supplementary information

This section includes financial information and disclosures not required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board and not considered a par of the basfc financial statements. It may, however, include information which is
required by other entities.




BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
BOND SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

1¢ 20 30
Interest Amounts Amounts Issued Retired
Date of Rale Original Qutstanding Current Gurrent
lssue Description Payable Issue 101117 Year Year

March 2004 Certificates of Obtigation 3.60%-50% $ 4,000,000(% 1,805,000 % - 3 225,000
September 2011 Certificates of Obligation 4.59% 1,100,000 865,000 - 45,000
September 2013 Certificates of Obligation 5.00% - 8.50% 1,200,000 575,000 - 220,000
1000 Totals $ 6,300,060|$ 3245000 % - % 490,000
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EXHIBIT DA

40 50 60 70 80 20 I
Amounts Interest Requirements 10/1/18
Outstanding Current Year Ending $/30/19 Year Ending 9/30/20 To Maturity
9/30/18 Year Principal Interest Principal interest Interest
$ 1,580,000 % 79325 § 235,000 $ 69,618 § 245,000 $ 58,935 § 237,120
820,000 38,671 50,000 36,491 50,000 34,196 268,068
355,000 38,975 240,000 19,975 115,000 4,888 4,888
$ 2,755,000 % 156,971 § 525,000 $ 126,084 § 410,000 $ 98,019 § 510,066

1
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Raul Hernandez and Company, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holly Rd., Suite 102
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361)980-0428 Fax (361)980-1002

Commissioner's Court
Brooks County, Texas
P.O. Box 517

Falfurrias, Texas 78355

Members of the Commissioner's Court:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Compiroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Brooks County, Texas, as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2018, and the related notes fo the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Brooks County, Texas's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated

March 12, 2019.
internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Brooks County, Texas's
internal control over financial reporiing (infernal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Brooks County, Texas's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Brooks County, Texas's

internatl control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a fimely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entfity’s financial
staterments will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,

yet important enough 1o merit attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limiiations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that

have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Brooks County, Texas's financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The resulis of our tests disclosed no instances of nongcompliance or other maiters that are required
io be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely fo describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the enfity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an iniegral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Audiling Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

:‘r@w/wg a8

Raul Hernandez & Company; P.C.

Respectfuily submitted,

Corpus Christi, TX
March 12, 2019
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

A. Summary of Auditor's Resuits
1. Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal contro over fiﬁancial reporting:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X No

2. Federal Awards-N/A
Internat control over major programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: modifi

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
{CFR} Part 2007 Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) f Federal P 1
N/A
Dallar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes _ No
B. Financial Statement Findings
NONE
C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
NONE
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Management's Explanation
Finding/Recommendation Current Staius If Not Implemented

N/A
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BROOKS COUNTY, TEXAS
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

N/A
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Line Item ¢

Raul Hernander & Company, P. C,
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holly Rd, Suite 102
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361)980-0428 Fax (361)980-1002

ibie Eric Ramos, County Judge
Junty Commissioners
*of Brooks

as, Texas

‘pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are fo provide Brooks County, Texas for the year
September 30, 2019. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
3 aggregate remaining fund information, including the related notes to the financial st
rely comprise the basic financial statements, of Brooks County, Texas as of and for the year ended
iber 30, 2019. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America brovide for certain
1 supplementary information (RS), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement
County, Texas' basic financial statements. Such information although not a part of th ic fi

ion far consistency with management’s responses to oyr inquiries, the basic financial stat
ge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We wilt not eXpress an opinion or provide
urance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to

an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RS is fequired by generally accepted accounting
s and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

agement’s Discussion and Analysis,

ements, and other

Jetary comparison schedules

B-required supplementary information

- also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies Brooks
Texas’” financial statements. We will subject the fallowing supplementary information to the auditing
3s applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additionaf procedures, including compating
neciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
landards generafty accepted in the United States of America, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation
neial statements as a whole.

1ule of expenditures of federaf awards.

ining and individual fund statements

1al standards promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), the

:ht Accountability Office (GAQ), and other require that auditors be independent of the clients for whom
rm attest services and that they document their independence. These standards ap
providing Brooks County, Texas. They may restrict some of the non-audit services we can do for you

our bookkeeping), but they allow us to provide numerous other services as long as you agree to
e following services:

ake all management decisions and perform all management functions:

ssignate an individual {(preferably in senior management) who possesses suitable skill, knowledge,
dfor experience to oversee the preparation of suggested adjustments and the draft of financial
itements, including the adjustments needed to convert fund information to government-wide information
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in the annual financiaf statements, and to oversee the filing of statements with appropriate regulatory or
funding agencies:

e Evaluate the adequacy and results of the seivices performed by us;
e Accept responsihility for:

=  The County's accounting and information systems:

= Adjustments we have suggested and you have approved;

= The financial statements and other reports we have helped you prefnare and you have approved,
such as the audit data feed;

= The submission of those financial statements and report to appropriate oversight or granting
agencies;

= Establish and maintain internal controls over the budgeting and bookkeeping process and over the
data and report submission processes reqguired by the Office of Management and Budget, and others.

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented,
in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness
of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. The objective also includes reporting an—

= Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

e Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an apinion (or disclaimer of opinian) on
compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could
have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Gulidance),

The Government Audifing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and cther
matters will include a paragraph that states that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of
testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal controt and
compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal control over compliance will include a paragraph that states
that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Both
reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Our audit wilt be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of the Uniform Guidance,
and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue written
reports upon completion of our single audit. Our reports will be addressed to management and the Commissioners
Court of Brooks County, Texas. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed.
Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-
malier paragraphs. If our opinions on the financial statements or the single audit compliance opinions are other
than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the
audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we
may withdraw from this engagement,

Audit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the
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areas to be tested, An audit also includes evaluaiing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than
absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from {1}
etrors, (2} fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental
regutations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the
government. Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auriting Standards do not expact
auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatemenis
or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition,
an audit is not designed to defect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that
do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or major programs. However, we will inform the
appropriate level of management of any material errors, any fraudutent financial reporting, or misappropriation of
assets that come to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate leve! of management of any violations of laws
or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse
that comes to our attention. We will include such matters in the reports required for a single audit. Our responsibility
as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are
net engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts,
and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain
ather assets and liabilities by comrespondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial
institutions. We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may
bitt you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we wili require certain written representations
from yotl about your responsibilities for the financial statements; schedule of expenditures of federal awards; federat
award programs; compliance with faws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities
required by generally acoepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures-—Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal contrai,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing,
and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain
controfs that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material o the financial
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance
matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal contral and, accordingly, no opinion will be
expressed in our report on internal contral issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the effectiveness
of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance
with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. However, our tests will be less in
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinlon will be
expressed in our report on internal contral issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or fo identify significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance
internal controf related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards,
Govemment Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
we will perform tests of Brooks County, Texas’ compliance with provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts,
and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an
opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report an compliance issued pursuant
to Govemment Audiling Standards.




The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance shout
whether the auditee has complied with applicable federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
federal awards applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other
applicable procedures described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Brooks County, Texas' major programs. The purpose of
these procedures will be to express an opinion on Brooks County, Texas’ compliance with requirements applicable
to each of its maijor programs in our report on compliance issued purstrant to the Uniform Guidance.

Other Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related
notes of Brooks County, Texas, in conformity with U.S, generally accepted accounting principles and the Uniform
Guidance based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under
Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for (1) establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including internal controis
over federal awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and
objectives are met; (2} following laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that
government programs are administered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring that
management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for
implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements. You are also responsible for the sefection and application of accounting printiples; for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements, schedute of expenditures of federal awards, and all accompanying
information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and for compliance with applicable
laws and regulations {including federal statutes) and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements (including
award agreements).

Management is also respansible for making all financial records and retated information available to us and for the
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all
information of which you are aware that is relevan! to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
stalements, (2} access lo personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other infermation
as heeded to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance, (3) additional information that we may request for the
purpose of the audil, and (4) unrestricled access fo persons within the government from whom we determine it
necessary fo obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities also include identifying significant contractor relationships in which the confractor has
responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and compieteness of that information. Your
responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements fo correct material misstatements and confirming to us in
the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsibe for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving {1) management, (2)
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect
on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud
or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are respansibfe for identifying and ensuring that the government
complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. Management is also responsible for
taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, or abuse that we report. Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is
management’s responsibility to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified
including noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported audit
findings; and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action ptan.

You are responsibie for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying with the
compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards {including notes
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and noncash assistance received) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include our report on the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to include the audited financial staternents with any
presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards that includes our report thereon OR make the audited
financial statements readily available to intended users of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards no later
than the date the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities
include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you betieve the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards, inciuding ifs form and content, is stated fairly in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period
(or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the schedule of expendifures of
federal awards.

You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been ehgaged
to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report on
the supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the
supptementary information. You aso agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the
supplementary information that includes our report thereon OR make the audited financial statements readily
available to users of the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued
with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1)
you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP: (2) you believe
the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the
methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have
changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the
Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actionstaken to address
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits,
or studies. You are also responsible for providing management's views on our current findings, conclusions, and
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for

providing that information.

You agree o assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, and related notes, and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to
acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements,
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the
financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have
accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual,
preferably from senior management, with suitable skiil, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and
resuits of those services; and accept responsibility for them.

Each year, the audit fee estimate is premised on the following assumptions:

e Brooks County, Texas wili have available those individuats necessary to answer questions that will arise during
the course of the work.

e Brooks County, Texas has maintained its system of internal accounting controls.

s Brooks County, Texas will prepare schedules and provide assistance to enable us to efficiently and successfully
compiete the engagemenit.

= No significant unanticipated accounting or auditing problems or changes will arise prior te our conducting this
audit.




Engagement Adminisiration, Fees, and Other

We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your
account. We may share confidential information abaut you with these service providers, but remain committed to
maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain internal palicies,
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we will secure
confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of vour information and we will
take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the
unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In the event that we are unable to secure an
appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your
confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work
provided by any such third-party service providers.

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request
and wilt locate any documents selected by us for testing.

Al the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form that
summarizes our audit findings. It is management's responsibility to electronically stbmit the reporting package
(including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit
findings, auditors’ reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit
clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification. If appticable, we will provide
copies of our report for you fo include with the reporting package you will submit to pass-through entities. The Data
Collection Form and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of
the auditor’s reports or nine months after the end of the audit period.

We will provide copies of our repors to the County; however, management is responsible for distribution of the
reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential
information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C., and constitutes
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate
individuals wili be made available upon request and in a timely manner to state and federal agency or ifs designee,
a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of
a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of
any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Raul
Hernandez & Company, P.C. personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit
documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or
information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release
date or for any additional period requested by the state and federat agency. If we are aware that a federal awarding
~ agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the
audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

We expect to begin our audit during August 2019 and to issue our reports no iater than March 2020. Raul
Hernandez is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the reports
or authorizing another individual to sign them.

Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates pius out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction,
word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, efc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, including
expenses, will not exceed $34,600. Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved
and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each
manth as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be
suspended if your account becomes & days or more overdue and may not be resumed untit your account is paid in
full. if we elect to terminate our services for any reason, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed
upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report(s). The first billing of $8,000 will
be due upon the signing of this engagement letter. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended
and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of {ermination. The above fee is based on anticipated
cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during
the audit. if significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate.
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We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Brooks County, Texas, and believe this letter accurately
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please fet us know. If you agree
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.

Very truly yours,

NNy “E B T
,r”%w’ g??./&&ga?fféi;;/f ?A{L»,gzz»g,@@?ﬁ g F . o~

Corpus Ghristi, Texas

RESPONSE:
This letter cotrectly sets forth the understanding of Brooks County; Texas. 3

Govemance signature:;

Title: County Judge

Date: March 22, 2019




FARRIS & FARRIS, CPA’S

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS PAUL W, FARRIS, CPA
: DEBRA £, FARRIS, {PA

13434 Leopard 5t., #4-29-A
Lorpus ChriSti, TX 78410

{361) 241-0656
Fax (361) 241-0658
Sasrisepat@aol.com

System Review Report

Movember 28, 2016

To the Owners
Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C.
and the Peer Review Committee of the Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Raul
Hernandez & Company, P.C. {the firm) in effect for the year ended May 31, 2016. Our peer review
was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews
established by the.Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, As a
part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities, if applicable, in determining
the nature and extent of our procedures, The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality
control and complying with it to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and
reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Our
responsibility is toiexpress an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm's
compliance therewith based on our review. The nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the
procedures performed in a System Review are described in  the standards at
Www.aicpa.org/prsummary.

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements performed under the
Government Auditing Standards.

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Raul
Hernandez & Company, P.C. in effect for the vear ended May 31, 2016, has been suitably designed
and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in
conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating
of pass, pass with: deficiencylies), or fail. Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C. has received a peer
review rating of pass. '

.
To 7 fa

Farris & Farris, CPA"S




Line Item 7

Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
5422 Holly Rd
Holly-Staples Square
Corpus Christi, Texas 784711

Office (361) 980-0428 Fax (361) 980-1002

March 22, 2019

Honorable Eric Ramos, County Judge
and County Commissioners

Brooks County

Falfurrias, Texas

We are confieming our understanding of the services to be provided in connection with
the audit of the Proceeds of Criminal Asset Forfeitures, pursuant to Sections 59.06(g) of
the code of Crimiinal Procedure, of the Brooks County Sheriff Department as of
September 30, 2019 and for the twelve months then ended.

The purpose and scope of the audit will be to express an opinion on the Proceeds of
Criminal Asset Forfeitures, pursuant to Sections 59.06(g) of the code of Criminal
Procedure, of the Brooks County Sheriff Department and will be conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; and will include tests of the
accounting records of the Proceeds of Criminal Asset Forfeitures, pursuant to Sections
59.06(g) of the code of Criminal Procedure, of the Brooks County Sheriff Department
and such other procedures as we consider necessary to enable us to express an
unqualified opinion that the Proceeds of Criminal Asset Forfeitures, pursuant to Sections
59.06(g) of the code of Criminal Procedure, of the Brooks County Sheriff Department are
fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. If our opinion is other than unqualified, we will discuss the reasons
for being unable to issue an unqualified opinion with you in advance. If for any reason,
we are unable to complete the audit, or are unable to form, or have not formed, an
opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or decline to issue a report as a result of

the audit.

The audit will be made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and,
accordingly, will include such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing
procedures, as we consider necessary in the circumstances to enable us to express an
opinion that the financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.




Manageinent Responsibilitics

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control and
for compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, confracts, agreements,
and grants. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are
required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of the controls. The objectives
of internal control are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
that transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorizations and
recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that federal award programs are managed
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and
grant agreements.

Management 1s responsible for making all financial records and related information
available to us, including any significant vendor relationships in which the vendor has the
responsibility for program compliance. We understand that you will provide us with such
information required for our audit and that you are responsible for the accuracy and
completeness of that information. Management’s responsibilities include adjusting the
financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in the
representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us
during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

You are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls, including
monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles;
and for the fair presentation in the financial statements and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. '

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to
prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud, or
illegal acts affecting the government involving (1) management, (2} employees who have
significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud or illegal acts could
have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing
us of yowr knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud or illegal acts
affecting the government received in communications from employees, former
employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying
and ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws and regulations and for taking
timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud, illegal acts, violations of contracts or
grant agreements, or abuse that we may report. :

As part of the audit, a letter of representation will be requested from management
confirming (a) certain representations made orally during the audit that are not reflected
in the Proceeds of Criminal Asset Forfeitures of the Brooks County Sheriff Department's
books of account or other records and (b) certain other representations implicit in the
books and records maintained by employees of the Proceeds of Criminal Asset
Forfeitures of the Brooks County Sheriff Department. That letter will deal with matters




such as management's acknowledgment of its responsibilities for the fair presentation of
the Proceeds of Criminal Asset Forfeitures of the Brooks County Sheriff Department
information concerning related party transactions, plans or intentions that may affect the
carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities, and similar matters.

As part of the audit of the Proceeds of Criminal Asset Forfeitures of the Brooks County
Sheriff Department the annual audit will also include obtaining an understanding of the
internal control structure and reporting any reportable conditions relating to the internal
control structure that come to our attention.

Having regard to the test character of an audit, you will appreciate that an audit will not
necessarily detect errors or other irregularities, should any exist. If during the audit
material weaknesses in internal control or in operating procedures are observed, we will
discuss these deficiencies with you to determine the scope of any additional work, which
may be required.

We will be available to meet with the appropriate county officials at their request during
the course of the audit and throughout the year. These meetings are beneficial in fulfilling
our responsibilities and giving us insight as to any County concerns,

Our professional fees are based upon our regular rates (commensurate with the level of
experience of the personnel assigned to the engagement) for the services provided as
applied to the actual time spent on the engagement. Our fee estimate for the above service
will be billed upon completion of the audit. We will appreciate the assistance of the
Brooks County, Texas’s personnel, as our approach is designed to utilize to the extent
possible internally prepared reports, account analyses and other pertinent schedules
prepared by your personnel. To the extent we can maximize the effectiveness of this
approach; we can in turn minimize the charges on this engagement. Based upon our
experience and knowledge of federal and AICPA requirements and standards, and our
understanding of your operations, the audit should not exceed $10,300.

The audit fee is premised on the following assumptions:

Brooks County, Texas will have available those individuals necessary to answer
questions that will arise during the course of the work.

Brooks County, Texas has maintained its system of internal accounting controls.
Brooks County, Texas will prepare schedules and provide assistance to enable us to
efficiently and successfully complete the engagement including the schedule of

“Seized Property Pending Summary (units only)”.

No significant unanticipated accounting or auditing problems or changes will arise
prior to our conducting this audit.




In the event the aforementioned matters are substantially altered or other uvousual
circumstances or problems arise during the audit, we will first discuss the situation with
you before proceeding, and any necessary revisions to the audit plan or fee will be
mutually agreed to.

Workpapers prepared Raul Hernandez & Company; P.C. during the audit will be the sole
property of the firm. However, we will furnish Brooks County, Texas with copies of
selected work papers, as requested by Brooks County, Texas. Furthermore, the work
papers will be made available for review upon the request of any appropriate agencies, or
when legal proceedings order their release. '

We are prepared to assist you with a wide range of financial and management services.
Please call on us for advice on accounting or for consultation in connection with other
management concerns. We will keep you informed of major accounting issues as they
arise. Any significant consultation services regarding special accounting or management
matters will be billed separately in accordance with a mutual understanding and
agreement of the nature and extent of the services involved.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve Brooks County, Texas and will be happy to
review this letter with the appropriate County personnel.

Please indicate your acceptance and understanding of the contents of this letter by signing
below.

Very truly yours,

T /-;(;F . 53 i;:':)
Al ﬁ?ﬂ&fzﬁjy@ o {:zjé‘/ﬁi«”f;&d&f%;;{, ez
Certified Public Accountants

Brooks County, Texas

Accepted By:

_— S| 17
Hoffoiable Eric Ramos, Date
County Judge
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCGUNTANTS PAUL W, EARRIS, CPA
1 DEPRA E, FARRIS, CPA

13434 ieopard 5., #4-29-A
Corpius ChriSti, TX 78420

{361) 241-0656
Fox (361} 241-0658
Jrrrisupo@acl.com

Systens Review Report

November 29, 2016

To the Owners
Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C. _
and the Peer Review Commitiee of the Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants

We have reviewed the system of gquality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Raul
Hernandez & Company, P.C. {the firm) in effect for the year ended May 31, 2016. Our peer review
was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews
established by the.Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. As a
part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities, if applicable, in determining
the nature and extent of our procedures, The firm is responsible for designing a systam of guality
control and complying with it to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and
reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Our
responsibility is toiexpress an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm's
compliance therewith based on our review, The nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the
procedures performed in a System Review are described in  the standards at
www.aicpa.org/prsummary.

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements performed under the
Government Auditing Standards.

In our opinion, the system of guality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Raul
Hernandez & Company, P.C. in effect for the year ended May 31, 2016, has been suitably designed
and compiied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in
conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating
of pass, pass with: deficiency(ies), or fail. Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C. has received a peer
review rating of pass. ‘

Farris & Farris, CPN's




